o COURT OF APPEALS, DIV.IIl NO. 248976 FILED

SEP 072007
COURT OF APPEALS
SUPREME COURT OF o STATE OF WASH%EIGTON
STATE OF WASHINGTON ?‘a 6 s / ‘/‘_ 6
(\\ GEOFFREY S. AMES, M.D.,
@ & ' “Petitioner, o9
) e
N M = o
SRRRGTIUS 8 Ao
Se W G on ' —? Sz
P WASHINGTON STATE HEALTH = ggg
oW DEPARTMENT MEDICAL QUALITY - éﬁrﬁm
HEALTH ASSURANCE COMMN., f_ éf’i’,
1Ys gé
Respondent. & w‘f;
PETITION FOR REVIEW

William R. Bishin P.S.

1404 East Lynn

Seattle, WA 98112

(206) 323-7175 '
By: William R. Bishin No. 8386

Certificate of Service

The undersigned served this
Petition on Respondent on this date
by placing it in the U.S. MAIL
addressed as follows:

Kim O’Neal, Esq.
. P.O. Box 40100
Olympia, WA 98504

temiber 4, 2007




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Identity of Petitioner
Opinion of the Coﬁﬁ of Appeals
Issues Presentéd' | |

| S.tate.ment- of the ‘Celse

The Expert Testimony and Failure-to-Charge
Issues Raised by the Foregoing Proceedings

T he Ejj“ icacy F mdmg

The. Finding of F azlure to Take Necessary Safety
- Measures

The Failure to Charge Basic Facts Found by the Panel
Argument
The Constitutional and Public Policy Importance of
Expert Testimony in Medical and Other Professmnal
Board Proceedmgs -
‘The Failure to Charge the Essential Facts

- The Meaning of RCW 18.130.180(16)

Conclusion

10

12

12

19
19

20




TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

Arthurs v. Board,
383 Mass. 299, 418 N.E.2d 1236 (1981)

Baltimore and Ohio R. Co. v.
Aberdeen & Rockfish R. Co.,
393 U.S. 87, 92, 89 S.Ct. 280 (1968)

Brown v. Dental Board,
94 Wn.App. 7, 972 P.2d 101 (Div. 3, 1998)

Burlington Truck Lines v. United States,
371 U.S. 156, 83. S.Ct. 239 (1962)

Davidson v. Dept. of Licensing,
33 Wn.App. 783, 657 P.2d 810 (1983)

Drew v. Psychiatric Sec. Rev. Bd.,
322 Or. 491, 909 P.2d 1211 (1996)

ICC v. Louisville R. Co.,
227 U.S. 88, 33 S.Ct. 185 (1913)

In re Mintz, ‘
233 Or. 441, 378 P.2d 945 (1963)

Jaffe v. State Dept. of Health,
135 Conn. 339, 64 A.2d 330 (1949)

~ Johnston v. Medical Board,
99 Wn.2d 466, 663 P.2d 457 (1983)

Martin v. Sizemore,
78 S.W. 249, 271 (Tenn. Ct.App. 2001)

McKay v. State Bd. of Med. Exmnrs,
103 Colo. 305, 86 P.2d 232 (1936).

Ohio Bell Telephone Co.,
301 U.S. 292, 57 S.Ct. 724,(1937)

13

13

8, 10513” 18

13

8,15, 16,18

13

13

13

8,13,16,17
8,10, 13,16, 18
13,15, 17

14

13



Painter v. Abels,
998 P.2d 931 (Wyo. 2000)

Smith v. Dept. of Registration,
412 111. 332, 106 N.E.2d 722 (111. 1952)

. State Bd. of Medical Examiners v. McCroskey,
880 P.2d 1188 (Colo. 1984):

i

18

14



IDENTITY OF PETITIONER
The Petltloner 1s Geoffrey Ames, M.D., the petltloner below.
| OPINION OF THE COURT OF APPEALS
The unpubhshed opinion of the Court of Appeals in thls matter, Ames

V. Medlcal Board, No. 24897 111 was ﬁled by the Court on May 17 2007.

 After Petx’uoner‘ S tlmely motion for recon51derat10n, the Court entered an
‘order denying the motion for reconsideration on August2, 2007. The opinion
and order ére attached. See Appendix.
ISSUES PRESENTED

~ The ‘specific issues of cdnstitutional, édministrative, professional
’diis,ciplinary and other statutory law that this case raises‘ are set out below.
But there are issues that deal with th¢ Br_dader supefvisory role of this Court
in insuring that every person receive dué process and that the outcome of
every case comports with the Rule of Law. The appellate issues raiéed by this
case ajri.se'out of the most brazen, laWIess administrative action that counsel
' -fo.r Petitionef has‘ encountered in over forty years of practice and teaching —
including the teaching of admihistrativé law —in jurisdictions throughout this
~country. The case is a frivoloils, malicious lprosecution, brought to coerce a
settlement. It was prosecuted without evidence, yielding a decision based on
a series of patent speculations and ad hoc fac;cual theories created during and
after the eﬁderfpiary hearing in this case. |

Respectfully, and with a vivid awareness of and concern about the



¢motional resistaﬁce of judges to criticisms of their friends and colleagues on
other courts, it must aiso be said that the agenéy’s lanessness in this case
has been aided',. abetted and imi)lemented by the most striking abdicatic;n of
judicial reéponsibility that -counsel has encountered in the State of

Washington, after almost thirty years of practicing here.

In short, the Court of Appeals refused to grant Petitioner the judicial _'
review Oflagvency erfqr to which he was e'ntitied under the Adminstrative
Procedure Act and the due proces and equal_ protection clauses. As this and
other couﬂé have hel-d, because of the needs of lthe administfative state,
judicial review is the only protéctidn against agéncies ‘with peculiar
6pbortunities to engage in uncontrolled abuse, becaﬁse they .have been
de_légated and can cqmbine in abusive waysit}.le législétive, administrative;
investigafive, pros,ec_utoriai and adjudicative powers.

‘Not only does the Court of Appéals opinion in this caée - aﬁd the oral
argumenf which pfeceded itv ~ suggest that it did not seriously review the
e{fidentiary record, the ﬁndings, or Petitioner’s brief; no;c only does that court
fail in all but one minor instance' to cite,. ev;an one place in the record which
supports its affirmance of agéncy findings that Petitioner 'vigorpusly
challenged; but the Court of Appeals ,(borrowing'not from the.record, but
from the agency briefj actually creates facts out of whole cloth and shifts the
burden of broof to the Petitiéner. It ‘not'.only misstates the facts, but it bases

its justiﬁcatioh ofthe agency’s conduct on findings that were never made and



facts that do not exist. Like thé respondent’s brief, which it apparently viewed
as the only document it need pay any serioﬁs aﬁention to; that court also
justifies the ‘agency decision, not by defending the reasoning of the agency,.
but by éréating a new, after-the-fact theory. The fesult is that the staténient
of chﬁgés proceeded on one factual theory, the paﬁel’s Order on another, and
the Court of App'e.als’s on yet anéthér. Coﬁlpafe fﬁé allegatiohs in thé
| afnended statement with ] 1.25-1.29 of the chalienged Order with pages 10- |
14 of the Court of Appeals opinion, all of which appear in the appeﬁdix. See | |
Opening Brief (“OB”) Appendix and this .A'ppen_dif(. |
’fhe.outrageou's decision of the agency was not surprising, because
' similar agencies throughout the country have done similar— al‘though not
quite as brazen — things_ in similar cases. Butin those other jurisdictions; t_he- :

Courts would hot stahd_for it, and found a way to thwart the abuse of

legislative power. See, Aespeci.ally, Painter v, Abels, 998 P.2d 93. 1 (Wyol 2000),
Whe;e a. fneciical boarc‘l;attempted to i)revent an alternative physician from
-uéing‘ a dew}ice like the one in this,case by attacking her mental health and
wheﬁ thét failed'by clainiing negiigénce Without being abie to offer any
expeﬁ testimony to support the claim. It is more than ironic that in
Washjngton,~ where public policy is clearly opposed to the substantive
.. objective Which motivated the agency’s actioh, the courts simply deferred to
- the égency’s abuse and then defended it in disingenuous opinions. |

There follow some of the specific issues this appeal raises.



1. Was the Medical Commission (“MQAC”) panel that issued the
Order on appeal correct in ruling‘ that under exist‘in;c:,y Washingtoh law no
expert evidéncé on the record was necessary to establish the medical,
scientific, or techniéal facts on which its decision rests, and if the panel was
correcf, shouid tho‘se decisions, as.to that issue, be overruled or limited on
due process or other legal ground_é? | .
~ 2. Under WAC 246-11-250, WAC 246-11-260 and WAC 246-11.-
520, Wthh require‘:s' that a statéménf of charges must contain a “clear and
.conéise statement of the . . . factual bésis” of the charge's, must the statement
set forth the specific facts — including the speciﬁé conduct of the .respbndent
. —found to constitute unpro_fessibnal conduct or is hotiée ‘pleadiﬁg sﬁfﬁcient? |
3. Did MQAC’S failure to,.épecify in the statement .of charges factl:sv
that it found essential fo its .conclusion that Petitioner ﬁad engaged’ in
, unprofessional conduct — including the specific conduct of the fespondent
which allegedly constitut_es such conduct — violate his “due procesé right to

- be notified of clear-and specific charges and to be afforded an oppoi‘tuni_ty to

anticipate, prepare, and présen ? hisb defense. In re Romero, 152
Wash.2d11‘24, 94 P3d 939 (2004)?

4. May éphysician be found to have'engaged in “negligence” under

RCW 18.130.180(4) because of a'good faith mistake in judgment on one

‘ occaéion without explicif evidence on the record that the mistake violated a -

standard of care which makes such a mistake negligence?



5. Under RCW .18.130.180(146) which makes “promotion for
. personal gain of any unnecessary or i‘nefﬁcaéious drug, device, treatment,
: ﬁrocedure, ‘or Aservice” “unprbfeséioﬁél cbnduct,” '
| ‘ (a)A ié evidérice_ and/or a ﬁnding ‘that a device failed to function
successfully én one occasion sufficient by itself to supéort a ﬁnding ora
con’clusibﬁ that the device is “inefﬁééci'ous” within the statute’s meéning?
(b) is _the use in his practice Qf an alternative assessment deyice for
which jthe respondent does not charge ar.ld‘_which was not shown to increase
.v his income, “promotion for personal gain” of that device WiT:hin the' rheaning
of the fstafute, taken as a whole and consideriﬁg the consequences? |
6. Weré thé proceedings below taken as a whole so outrageous and
inconsistent with due process and the 'Administrativé Procedure Act as to
requi;*e this Court to lay down specific guidelines for the im'tiation and
conduct of | mediéal commission hearings, at least in 'cases in%l.c_)lving
alternative physicians and alternative medfcal modalities? |
7; Did the Court of Appeals and the Superio’r. Court accord the
Petitioner meaniiigful_ judicial reVieW of thé panel decision in this case—e.g,
of his right to a determination of the sufficiency of the evivdencev under the
Administrative Procedure Act and the due process clause?
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
This case arises out of the use by aholistic physician of an assessment

device which was found to be inefficacious and its use therefore a violation



of the uniform disciplinary_act’s proscfiption of negligence and “promotion
. for personal gain” ofan “inefﬁcacious’; device. The hearing was neld before
“and the Order on appeal was issued by a panel of two | MQAC members and
a pro tem physician’s assistant. Only one member of the panel was a
physician. Because of page limitations, the Petitioner, Geoffrey Ames, M.D.
must rely on hlS opemng and reply brlefs and his motion for recon81derat10n
to inform the Court of all of the enormities that occurred in this case. This _
Statement of the Case will focus on a few of vthe panel’s findings that raise
| the major substantive issnes in this Peti;cl;on. The Court should be aware,
~ however, from the outset that m neither :of the two statements of charges filed
in this case, nor at any time or in any place thereafter has there ever been a
contention, let alone evidenee, that this device was dangerous in any fespect
or tnat it naS caused harm to anyone. In addition, the Court is also warned that
- altnongh the Court of Appeals did not aeldress them — some of the
' assertions of fact on which the Order relies neavily (especially in 19 1.25-
1.29) are wholly without support and inconsistenciesbetween M1.1-1.24
and 91.25-1.29 that the Court may wonder abont are really there.
Ini_tially, tne Court is requested to note the fol.lowing‘ testimony from
5 the patientA (“P1") Witn whom Dr. Ames was claimed to be unprofessional. ’.
. VQ. - [Y]ou’re not clalmmg, are you, that Doctor Ames caused you
© any injury, are you? '
-~ No.

A
Q.  Hedidn’t hurt you in any way, did he?
A ‘No. :



Particularly with respect to this device, you don’t know of any

injury this device caused you: isn’t that correct?

No.

You don’t know of any injury the muscle testmg caused you,

isn’t that correct?
- Yes. , :
So basically your problem with Dr. Ames is that he sounded
— what word did you use —a little obsessed w1th altematlve '
medicine: is that right? -
That’s fair.

Or Op O

As I understand your testimony at the deposition, when you

wrote to the medical commission you didn’t really consider .
- yourself as complaining about Dr. Ames: isn’t that correct?
" Yes.

o

Now, you didn’t think that Dr. Ames was trylng to fool you or
mislead you, did you?

No. :

 You just felt he was overboard in his enthusiasm — or might
be — for some of these modalities; isn’t that right?

Yes. had questions in my own mind about how the whole -
thing played out. [CR 2227-2228]

> opr O p

Atthe hearing, no expert or iayperso"n festiﬁed fhat Dr. Ames’s device
was- inefﬁcacious. No studies, tests, le_valuatio_ns or d'emoustrations were -
intreduced reporting or purporting to establish that. No expert or la'yperson' |
testified that it was dangerous in any way. No ijerson testified fhat the device

was of a type that required any safety' measures, nor that ' an}; safety
| precautions or investigations were necessary, or what such precautions might
be. No expeft or layperson testified that Dr. A_mes '.had not sufficiently
investigated the safety of the device. No person other than Dr. Ames and his
eﬁpert witness Dr. Martin testified ‘about allergies. No expert or iayperson -

incliding P1 —testified that P1 did not have an egg allergy. Although P1 had-



been teSted and treated fof hay fever twenty-ﬁve.years earlier, .he did not
testify and there was no o;ch¢f evidence that he had ever been tested for food
allergies and no other'evidencé was introduced to the effect that he did not
hav'é an egg or any othver food allergy. Nor did P1 tesﬁfy tﬁat he had not been
c_'ufed by Dr. Amés’s treatment. No expert or layperson testified that Dr.
‘Ames had ,violatéd any $tandard of c.are or created an}; rfsk of harm -
re'asonable"o'r unreasonable — to P1. No one vtestiﬁ.ed that Pl had been
deceived orvexploited. P1did n'ot‘tést_ify that he had been billed for the. use of
the. dcvice wifh him br for the .treatment he allégedly ﬁad.

Inan analysis at thé beginn‘in‘g‘of its 'Order the panél anticipated the
A | obj ection that none of its ﬁﬂdings regarding negligenéé and inefficacy Weré

based on expert testimony. It said that under Johnston v. Medical Board, 99

-Wn.2d 466, 663 P.2d 457 (1983) and'Brown v. Dental Board, 94 Wn.App.
7,972 P.ﬁd 101 (Div. 3, 1998) such testimony was not necessary because -
MQAC had sufficient experﬁse to resolve expert factual issues. It might also -

have cited Davidson v. Dept. of Licensing, 33 Wn.App. 783, 657 P.2d 810 .

(1983), the primary basis of the Brown deéision’s language regarding expert

testimony. Davidson in turn drew its ideas and language almost word for

word from portions of a 1949 Connecticut case, Jaffe v. State Dept. of Health,

135 Conn. 339, 64 A.2d 330 (1949).

THE EXPERT TESTIMONY AND FAILURE-TO-CHARGE
ISSUES RAISED BY THE FOREGOING PROCEEDINGS

The Efficacy Finding. As noted, the ﬁnding of inefficacy, which



épp'ea;rs in J1.25, aﬁd therefore of négligeﬁée (M .28); is not based on expert
testimony, or other scientific or mediéal eVidence._ It is based entirely on a.
tOrfured, speculative inference from Pl 's answeré to questions by Ms. Paxton,
the pro tem physician aSéistant, to the effect that no one had ever told him‘
fhat he had an éllergy to eggs and that he had no reaction (apparently of the
sort fthat he had to ‘b'lov&.'ing dust) that he knew of to them. CR 2268-2270.
, Thére was no eXpert téstimony or other medical evi_denqe that hé had had no
reactions to eggs — 'ob\l/iously,- peopl‘e. are. nbt aware of all re,action_s their
quies have to ailergens:' that is why there are allergy test‘s — nor thét he did
not.hAave such an allergy, nor‘qlat the fatigue and other sympfoms of which
P1 complained (see J1.13) were not symptoms that could be caused by an egg
~ allergy. Yet his ansv?e‘rs to Ms. Paxton’s questions became the keystone of
the pénelfs entire decision. On that basis alone, thé panel foﬁnd that P1 did
not have an egg“ailergy and therefore the tISTEN Was in'efﬁcacious and
therefére Dr. _Am'esl was négligenf for using it, eté.- See Petitioﬁer’s fuller
. 'analysis of the egg a]lergy finding in OB 32-37. | |

VSu"rel'y, fhis éannbt be the kind of evidence our Supreme Court allows
to be used by the medical and other boards to visit severe injﬁries to career
and reput:%tion, and to creé‘;e a life time stain on a proféssiqnal’s record. For
thé effects of this discipline on Peﬁtioner see Reply Br.3-4. We conténd that
this caég would probably never have been filed and certainly the lower courts

‘would not have upheld the panel’s decision if MQAC had been required to



prove medical, scientific and technical facts through qualified expert
witnesses. That is a central reason why the language on expert testimony in

Johnston and Brown is harmful and, in part, why it is in error.

The Finding of Failure to Take Necessary Safety Measures. This
Finding in J1.28 is, if ioossible,‘ éven more speculative than the inferences of
no egg' allergyv and of inéfﬁcacy. See discussion of the wholly unsupported
asSumpﬁons on which itis based in OB 39-42. As discussed infra and below,
it was never charged and the evidence on which it was based did not exist
until at the hearing Dr. Ames testified that he did not know the physics
behind th¢ device, that he was not sure of the exact wvoltage énd that the'

device had no labeling and came only with a manual. The Finding Qlaifns_
thaf Dr. Ames did not take allegedly necessary safety measures, but there was
no teétimony as to Wha;c such measures were or that the nature of the device
required special safety measures. Such testimony would have had to be
provided By an-expert on such devices, but the expert who. testified on the
subject was not asked these questions by anyone and only testiﬁed that the
type of device Waé safe. Ibid.

The finding assumes that Dr. Ames’é consultations wifh his
colleagues and the vendor were not sufficient, but vthere’ isno ‘Feétimony asto
why this would be so, jﬁst as there was no tesﬁmony adverse tol Dr. Ames as
to what happened in tﬂose consultations. The panel simioly assumed that he

- didn’t learn everything he needed to know in those consultations. For some

10



of Dr. Ames’s testimony ébbut his assurances ﬁrom these sources and his own
investigation O.f safety, including testing it on himself, e.g., CR 3063-3065,
3120, 3157-3158. The Finding also assufned that he did not receive any
personal training on the device during any of those consultations and that the
nature of the device requires personal training, rather than simply reading a
manual. None of these assumptions were justified by‘ expert or other
testimony. Again, it is difﬁcult to see how such a finding could have been

made or upheld if it must be based on expert testimony on the record.!

. THE FAILURE TO CHARGE BASIC FACTS FOUND BY THE PANEL

Despite the language of WAC 246-11-250 and the due process
doctrine requiring specific, clear charges sufficient to allow preparation of a
meaningful defense, /n re Romero, 152 Wash.2d 124,_ 94 P.3d 939 (2004),
neither lower céur_t took seriously MQAC’s failures to charge most of the |
facts on which it based its decision — such facts as that Dr. Ames treated P1, |
thatvhe did so' with the LISTEN, that he told Pll that he had been cured, that
h¢ failed to take necessary safety measures and what those measures were.
These courts did not address the language of the regulation or this Court’s
applicable due process language and indeed never stated that the “féctual
basis” had beén set forth in the charges or that .they were clear and specific.
The reason these facts were not charged was that they were not part of

MQAC’s case until testimony was taken. They are not mentioned in

Space does not permit further discussion of other instances in which expert testimony '
should have been required — e.g., as to the nature of any risk that Dr. Ames created.

11



MQAC’s pre-hearing statement nor in MQAC’s opening. See OB 38-42.
| Had Dr. Ames known, for example, that whether P1 had an egg
‘allergy and Dr. Ames had taken necessary safety measures were issues, he
could have arranged for independent exper.t. witnesses to testify about these
matters. He could have deposed MQAC experts on the subject, if MQAC had
named such experts — as it probably would have had to if it had chosen to
make such charges — and he would have' deposed P1 differeﬁtly.
ARGUMENT
Peﬁtioner contends that the description of what MQAC and the lower
courts did below self-evidently raises fundamental constitutional and
| statutorsl issues. This Argument will be devoted to shdwing primarily that
Petitioner has a strong argument fhat the Johnston-Davidson-Brown language
on which MQAC relied was incorrect (and unnecessary in the circumstances
ofthose cases) and therefore should be disapproved orat leasf strictly limited.
Brief remarks on two of the other issues are provided to show that there are

substantial considerations justifying finding for Petitioner on those as well.

1. THE CONSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC POLICY IMPORTANCE
OF EXPERT TESTIMONY IN MEDICAL AND OTHER
PROFESSIONAL BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Over the years, and especially in the years after World War I, many
medicél and other profeésional boards argued that as to medical, scientific
and techhical fac;cs on which a charge of unp;ofessional conduct is based, the
boards acﬁng as prosecutors need not introduce expert evidence of such facts

at the hearing, because the boards acting as adjudicators are themselves

12



experts and do not “need” the testimony. For that feason, they claimed, they
can consider such facts in their decision even though no one testified to them.
The majority of courts confronted w1th this contention -a éontention
that flies in the face of principles set down by several well-known United
Sta;ces Supreme Court callse:s2 — have resoundingly rejected it. California,
Oregon, Idaho, Iilinois, Texas, Minnesota, 'Wisconsin, Mdssachusetts, and
New Jersey are among the states that have done so.? See, e..g., Arthurs v.
Board, 383 Mass. 299, 309-310,418 N.E.Zd 1236 (1981): |

The board, however, argues that since most of the members of the board are
experts, the board can use its expertise without the evidentiary basis of that
expertise appearing in the record. “This startling theory, if recognized,
would not only render absolute a finding opposed to uncontradicted
testimony but would render the right of appeal completely inefficacious
as well. A board of experts, sitting in a quasi-judicial capacity, cannot be
“silent witnesses as well as judges.” [citing authority] The board may put its
expertise to use in evaluating the complexities of technical evidence.
However, the board may not use its expertise as a substitute for evidence
in the record. “The requirement for administrative decisions based on
substantial evidence and reasoned findings which alone make effective
judicial review possible would become lost in the haze of so-called
expertise (if material facts known to the agency did not appear in the
record). Administrative expertise would then be on its way to becoming ‘a
monster which rules with no practical limits on its discretion.’ ” Baltimore
& Ohio R. R. v. Aberdeen & Rockfish R. R., 393 U.S 87, 92, 89 S.Ct. 280,
283,21 L.Ed.2d 219 (1968), quoting from Burlington Truck Lines, Inc. v.
United States, 371 U.S. 156, 167, 83 S.Ct. 239, 245, 9 L.Ed.2d 207 (1962)

See also, Drew v. Psychiatric Sec. Rev. Bd., 322 Or. 491, 498-499, 909 P.2d

1211, 1214-1215 (1996):

E.g., Baltimore & Ohio R. Co. v. Aberdeen & Rockfish R. Co, 393 U.S. 87, 92, 89 S.Ct. 280
(1968); Burlington Truck Lines v. United States, 371 U.S. 156, 167, 83 S.Ct. 239,245
(1962); Ohio Bell Telephone Co., 301 U.S. 292, 304, 57 S.Ct. 724, 730 (1937) (Cardozo,

1) ; ICCv. Louisville R Co., 227 U.S. 88, 33 S.Ct. 185 (1913)

. See generally Martin v. Sizemore, 78 S.W. 249, 271 (Tenn. Ct.App. 2001).
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A somewhat less flattering, but equally accurate, summary of this
last argument is as follows: "There's enough evidence but, even if it
doesn't seem like enough to you--trustus. We have expertise beyond
that of the average person in these cases, and we're satisfied." Seen
in this light, it should come as no surprise that we reject the argument.

"Itis one thing * * * to say that an agency may employ its experience
and expertise to evaluate and understand evidence and quite another
to allow it to use its special knowledge as a substitute for evidence
. presented at a hearing. A fundamental premise of administrative law
is that the quality and efficiency of the regulatory process will be
enhanced by delegating authority to experienced, expert
administrators. Just as fundamental, however, is the principle that
factfinding in contested cases is governed exclusively by the record
of the hearing.
'#* * * [Elxclusiveness of the record is at the core of the right to a fair
hearing. Without that principle the hearing itself can be but a sham.
* % * Only if the agency is limited to the record of the hearing can the
private party have assurance that he not only has a full opportunity to
present his case but, more important, opportunity to confront and
‘rebut the entire case against him. [citing authority] . . . . We agree
with that statement and adopt it as our own. '

The substantial evidence rule . . . . loses its meaning if it is
interpreted as leaving to the internal "expertise" of agency personnel,
rather than to the external scrutiny of appellate courts, the critical
question whether the facts of the case permit the administrative
choice involved.

See also State Bd. of Medical Examinersv. McCroskey, 880 P.2d 1188,1194-
- 1195 n.7 (Colo. 1984):
The Board does not have the authority to set the standard of care from
its own knowledge when that standard has not been presented and
tested in the hearing process. McKay v. State Bd. of Med. Exmnrs,
103 Colo. 305, 312-313, 86 P.2d 232, 236 (1936).

It is important to recognize that the majority view is not thaf expert

testimony is always required when there are medical, scientific or technical

facts to be established. Where the reviewing court can tell from the record

14



that the board’s conclusion is clearly right or where the board properly takes
official notice of facts notorious to experts, such testimony - especially

testimony regarding the standard of care — is not required. See e.g., Martin

v.. Sizemore su.pm; Inre Mintz, 233 Or.441,378 P.2d 945 (1963) A review
of the Johnston, Davidson and Brown cases shows that they fall into this
category and it was unneceésary to use the language on which MQAC relied
here. In Davidson no expert testimony w'asA necessary because the
chiropractor in that case had clearly abused his patients sexually and a

layperson could tell this was unprofessional (what could be more

unprofessional?). InJohnston and Bfown —unlike this one —there was ample-
expert testimony — indeed tesﬁmony thét explicitlyia-md implicitly stated the
standard of care and addressed all other relévant medical and dental fééts.
: With‘that testimony no reviewing judge could have had a problem .applying
the substantial evidence rule and no respondent could reasonably claim that
he had no opportunity to cross-examine and rebut the evidence égainst him.
As _noted above, the J Ohnstdn-Davidson;Brown language derives fromv

portions of a 1949 Connecticut case, Jaffe v. State Dept. of Health, 135 Conn.

339, 64 A.2d 330 (1949); see, especially, 135 Conn. at 350-351. The
minority of caées that addpted the language and reés_oning of Jaffe apparently
did not notice that even though it did not require expert testimony before the
board, under the Connecticut procedure of that time, the respondent had in

effect a right to a de novo judicial review in a proceeding that would
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inevitably require the board to call expert witnesses to defend against the
" respondent’s court challenge. See id at 354-355. Thus iﬁ Cennecticut, M’_e
holding would not have had the adverse effects that led to its rejection by the
majority of courts in this country. |
Be that as it may, the M ruling — although it is phrased in language
Which sounds logical - is subject to serious logical criticism.* .@jﬂe in essence
éaid that expeft test_imoﬁy was not necessary, beeause the board consisted
entirely of physicians and must be presumed to know the standafd of care and
because the board had the right to disregard expert testimony: i.e., it wasn’t
necessary. As to the presumption of orﬁnicompetence, in 1949, when
medicine was much simpler and there Were fewer specialties, the difficulty
| might not have been apparent. But now we know that a generalist or
specialist sifting on such a board may have no kriowledge of the standard of
care for a different svpecialty - e.. g., ofaneurosurgeon, a pediatric cardiologist,
a radiation oncologist or, for that matter, a specialist in food allergies or
holistic medicine. Although in some familiar cases, the entire panel may
know eXactly what the standard of care is, in many others all or most will not.

In addition, today virtually every board has members who are not

Davidson is expressly based on Jaffe and one of its followers and Jaffe was cited in the
briefing in Johnston. But no brief informed either the Johnston or the Davidson court
that even at that time Jaffe was a minority case: indeed, none of the briefs for the
respondents even addressed Jaffe and attempted to show its logical weaknesses. This was
no doubt because the expert testimony issue inJohnston was a minor one and in Davidson
the evidence of wrongdoing was clear without any expert testimony. Thus, there was little
incentive for a full-dress discussion. The briefs are in the University of Washington and
the State Supreme Court libraries under docket numbers 48104-1 and 5414-1..
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members of the profession in question. The Court of Appeals sloughed this
off, but Petitioner contends that by itself this lack of expertise is a decisive
answer to the Jaffe doctrine and Washington’s adoption of its language,
especially where, as here, a majority of the panel are not members of the
profession. In that situation> the very foundation of the Jaffe rationale

disappearé. See e.g., Martin v Sizemore, 78 S.W. 249, 270-271 (Tenn.

Ct.App. 2001):

itis quite possible that . . . a majority of the Board will lack sufficient
expertise to have a personal understanding of the applicable standards
of professional practice for a particular professional. In this
circumstance, expert testimony regarding the applicable standards of
professional conduct is necessary to enable the board members who
are unfamiliar with the applicable standard of practice to discharge
their -adjudicatory responsibilities.Without this - evidence, the
non-expert board members will be faced with the choice of either
basing their decision on their own uninformed notions about the
applicable professional standards or deferring to board members who
possess the necessary expertise.

Public. fhembefs are supposed to be‘ independent from the medical

- professionals. Thisthey cannot be if they aré dependent upon them fof expert

information. | As for a physician’s assistant, especially a pro tem, there is

simply no basis for presuming that she has knowledge of a physicianfs -

especially a specialist’s — standard of care or of many other medical facts ;that |
even a general prac_titionef would know. |

Space permits no further discﬁssion of many other logical objections

to L@ﬁe_,[ particularly in Washington, where RCW 34.05.461(3), by adding

requirements regarding agency orders that did not exist at the time of
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Johnston and Davidson establishes the State’s powerful commitment to strict
and meaningful judicial review and RCW 18.130.180(4)’s coﬁcem about
medical board bias against alternative physicians. See OB 26, 29-30.
Finally, it does not seem an unreasonable burden that an agency be
required to present its case through expert testimony to the extent that the
case is based on medical, scientific and technical facts. As courts have
poiﬁted out, if the facts are as the agency contends them to be, it should be a

relatively simple matter to find experts who will so testify. See Smithv. Dept.

of Registration, 412 111. 332,106 N.E.2d 722 (Ill. 1952), at 730 (“if the “Koch
Treatment’ is without value, it w_aé a simple matter for the Department to

have produced such proof”). Note that in Johnston and Brown, several

physicians did testify for the board and implicitly — and sometimes éxplicitly
— stated that what the licensee had done fell below the standard of care.

Iﬁ this case, if the Commission had evidence establishing that the
devi;:e was inefficacious it shoﬁld have been abie to present a physician
.and‘/or abiomedical engineer to so testify and to state the medical or scientific
reasons for his or her opinion. Ifthere were any notorious facts on which the
view was based, they could have been officially noticed after giving
Petitioner an opportunity to contest them.

The failure to ‘present expert testimony' in a case like this one suggests

~ that MQAC cannot find an expert who can testify to the facts the agency

alleges to constitute a violation of the law, as does the fact that the board did.
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not initially charge that the device was inefficacious or that Petitioner Was
~ negligent and that these new allegations were based ovn fhe very same
invesﬁgative file that the first statement of charges was based on. Most
impressively, when the hearing was held MQAC did present experts, an
expert on biofeedback machines and an FDA employee from Maryland —not
the easiest experts to ﬁnd —but nbne, could or did testify to ;che efficacy of the
device or to Dr. Ames’s negligence.

THE FAILURE TO CHARGE THE ESSENTIAL FACTS

Itis both a constitutional matter and an issue of critical public interest
that the Court make it clear that WAC 246- 11-250 will be followed, and that
the specific conduct claimed to constitute unprofessional conduct be stated
in the charges. | This is a matter of fundameﬁtal due process and not only the
. panel, but both lower courts simply refused to address beither the regulation
or the due p.rolcess language that this Court has used to assure adequate notice
of the factual théory ofa quasi-ériminal disciplinary proceeding. To require
adherence to this authority prevents what happened here aﬁd imposes no
significant burden on health care boards coﬁducting quasi criminal
proceedings. The WACs give these boards unfettered discfetion to amend
any time and any number pf times. See WAC 246-11-260.

THE MEANING OF RCW 18.130.180(16)
The panel and the -Coﬁrt of Appeals interpreted this statute for the first

time and, Dr. Ames contends, interpreted it in a way that cannot withstand
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scrutiny. That interpretation creates a major threat to alternative medicine
when it is realized that medical Board panels are necessarily comprised of
: conventiénal physicians and those who are likelsf to be influenced by them.
See discussion of this statute’s meaning in OB 42-48.
CONCLUSION
The Couﬁ should grant the Petition and correct the aberrations below.
Respectfully submitted,

LAWOFF ICES OF
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COURT OF APPEALS, DIVISION THREE, STATE OF WASHINGTON

GEOFFREY S. AMES, M.D., No. 24897-6-ll

)

)

- Petitioner, ) :

) ORDER DENYING

V. ) MOTION FOR

) RECONSIDERATION;
)  ORDER DENYING
) MOTION TO MODIFY
)
)
)

'CLERK’S RULING

WASHINGTON STATE HEALTH
DEPARTMENT MEDICAL QUALITY
HEALTH ASSURANCE COMMISSION,
| Respondent.
THE COURT has considered petitioher’s motion for recAonsideration‘ of this
Coﬁrt’s .decision of May 17, 2007, and the answer thereto, and is of the opinion
the motion should be denied.
| THE COURT hasvfurt_her considered thé petitivoner’s. objection to the
Clerk’s Letter_ofJuIy 9, 2007, and is alsb of the opinion the objection should be
| d_enied.ﬁ Therefore, |

TS ORDERED, the motion for reconsideration of this court’s decision of

“May 17, 2007 is hereby denied.



No. 24897-6-1 -
Ames v. Washington St. Health Dep't

IT iS' FURTHER ORDERED, the objection to the Clerk’s Letter of’July 9,
2007 is also denied. |

DATED: August 2, 2007

FOR THE COURT:




FILED

MAY -1 7°2007

In the Off ice of the Clerk of Court
WA State Court of Appeals, Division I1]

IN THE COURT OF APPEALS Q.F THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
GEOFFREY S. AMES, M.D., ‘No. 24897-6-111 |
| | Peﬁﬁonen‘ | |
V. ~ Division Three
. WASHINGTON STATE HEALTH

DEPARTMENT MEDICAL QUALITY

)

)

)

)

)
)
)
HEALTH ASSURANCE COMMISSION, )
. _ . )
)

Respondent. UNPUBLISHED OPINION

_' KATO,‘J.";'——The Washington State-DepAartfnen‘t of Health, Medical Quality
As$urance Comhiésion (Commission), fbhnd Dr. Geoffrey Ames had corhmitted
unprofessionalllconduct by using an 'alt.ernative medical device. The Commission’
determined his conduct fe.llvbeIOW the standard of care and stpended his
license for five years. But it stayed the suspension provided that Dr. Ames
‘co.mply with sevéral conditions At_hat included' not-'USing the device, paying a fine,
and submitting his records for periodic evaluations. Dr. Amles appealedto

superior court, which uphel_d the.Cbmmission’s ruling. We affirm.

' * Judge Kenneth H. Kato is servmg asa Judge pro tempore of the Court of
VAppeals pursuant to RCW 2.06.150.
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Dr. Ames, a licensed physician, is board certified in holistic medicine. .In
1995, he began practicing in Richlandl, Washington, specializing'in chronic
fatigueand allergies. One of the methods used by Dr. Amee was acupressure.

Another method used by Dr. Ames employed a device called the Life
' f‘\f'lnformatlon System Tens device (LISTEN) lt is a galvanic skm response
machme that measures changes in resistance. James Clark developed it and
submitted in,fovrmat_io‘n to the Food and Drug Administration (FDA). LISTEN was |
described as haVing electrodermal screening "tecvhniques, alternative medicine
techniques, and bioenergetics techniques. The‘FDA did not clear the deyice for -
these uses. Mr. Clark also developv‘ed other galvanic skin reepohse devices_that _.
were cleared, but:not approved, bly the FDA. |

Dr. Ame:s. Iearned about LISTE-N from colleagues He understood the
' ,deV|ce functloned like a blofeedback machlne In 1997 ‘he purchased it and
Iearned how to operate it from colleagues. His nurse attended a course on the
use of the device er electrodermal screemng (EDS), but -he did not find her |
~ training useful for his purposes. He used LISTEN when treating .His patients, but
did not specifically bill them for it. - I |

Dr.'Ames saw P'atie.ntOne on June 6, 2001, and July 1‘(A), 200’1.' The
patient complained of fatlgue slugglshness weak and tired Jomts and muscles;

mfrequentjomt and muscle pain, and severe mood swings. During the flrst VISI'[

s
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Dr. Ames discussed metal toxicity, metal poisoning, and his alternative medicine
practice. He ordered blood tests and a urine te'st.., :

O‘n July 10, Dr. Ames reviewed the Iab'results with Patient One and told
hrm he had a mineral imbalance mrneral defcnencres and a low testosterone
Ievel Dr. Ames thought Patrent One might have some metal porsonrng that
contributed. to-his tlredness He told him he should undergo treatment for metal
poisoning and he might be allergic to eggs and mustard, allergies that could be
weakening hrs body | L |

Dr. Ames then told Patient One abodt LISTEN and how it could be usedto -
find out what \riras going on with nis body. Dr. Ames said he would place'a probe n
| connected to LISTEN in the patient’s hand. This would enable the doctor to
-make a diagnosis and \pos_sibly cure any ailergies; ‘ |

Prior to using LIS.TEN Dr. Ames assessed Patient One’s strength. While |
iyrng on hIS back, the patlent raised his nght arm and Dr Ames asked him to
resrst whrle he tned to pull his arm down This test revealed Patrent One had a-

. strong resrstance. Dr. Ames then had the patient raise his arm as before. The
~ doctor typed the word “eggs” into LISTEN and ask.ed the patient to resist wh.en
he pulled on his arm. Dr. Ames was able to easily pull the‘patient’s arm down,
ind‘icating he had been compromised due to his egg allergy. Next, the doctor had

Patient One roll over onto his stomach and he thumped his back with an
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ecupressure device. Dr. Ames again did the resistance test with LISTEN, but ,

this timehe'wa’s not able to pull the patient's arm down. Dr. Ames told him his i

allergy was gone. | | |
Dr. Ames advised Patient One not to eat eny eggs for the next 24-48 hours

or the treatment would not take. The patieht believed any egg allergy he had.

was cured. _He had never before be'en.'diagnosed es having an egg allergy. Dr.

| Ames told Patient One he would have to return to cure his other allergies

because only one allergy at a time could be cured:

Dr. Ames disputed Patient One’s account of the second VISlt claiming he
snmulated the process he would use to treat the allergy through muscle testlng
but did not actually use LISTEN. He was merely mformmg Patlent One about
'. what mlght happen if he elected treatment

Several weeks after his last visit, Patient One contaeted- the Dlep.artmentef'
Health (D.epartr'nent) because he was cOh'cerned about Dr. Ames’s views of -
mereury, lead poisoning, and chelation. ‘He ats-o indicated concern with the

doctor’'s obsession with alternative modalities.

After an-investigation, the Department filed on July 10, 2'0'02, a Statement
of Charges against Dr. Ames, alleging he treated Patient One with LISTEN in
violation of federal food and drug acts and state law. On February 5, 2003, the

Department amended its cha,rges against Dr. Ames to claim he was not acting
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‘Wlthln the required standard of care, his actions constituted morai turprtude and
he promoted an meffcacrous device for personal gam The Commission
determined Dr. Ames violated (a) RCW 18.130.180(4) by being negligent in -
creating a risk the patient could be harmed‘ and (b) RCW 18.130.180(16) by -
promoting an inefficacious device for personal gain. The Commis’sion, however,
 did not find Dr. Ames had violated the standard of care or committed an act of |
moral iurpitude., Based upon its findings, the_Commission suspended his license.
But the suspension was stayed provided Dr: Ames not uee LISTEN in his
practice, permit the CcmmissiOn“to conduct quarterly record reviews of his
patients, submit a declaration he was corriclying,with the Qrder each quarter, and
| pay a $5,000 fine. Dr. Ames-appealed this decision to the Benton County
Superior Court, which upheld the Commission’s rUIing. This appeal fOlIow_s.

The Department charged Dr. Ames with violating several prOVisions of the.
Uniform Disciplinary Act, chapter 18.130 RCW. This Act establishes the
llicen'sure and disciplinary procedure for health care profees'idns. Nguyen v. Dep't
of Health, Med. Qua/iz‘y Assur. Comm’n; 144 W'ri.2d 516, 520, 29 P.3d 689 |
(2001), cert. denied, 535 U.S. 904 (2062). RCW 18.130.100 provides that all
disciplinary proceedings are governed by the Washington Adminstrative

Procedure Act (WAPA), chapter 34.05 RCW.
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“In reviewing administrative action, this. court sits in the same positio'n as
the superior court, applying the standards of ~the WAPA directly to the record _’
befere the ag_en,cy.”’: Heinmiller v. Dep't of Health, 127 Wn.2d 595,: 601, 903 P.2d
433, 909 P.2d 1294 (1995) (quoting Tapper v. Employment Sec_l Dep’t, 122
 Whn.2d 397, 402, 85-8 P;2d 494 (1993)), cert. denied, 518 U.S. 1006 (1996).
Because this is a medical quasi-criminal proceeding, flndlngs of fact must be
proved by a clear preponderance of the evidence. Nguyen 144 Wn.2d at 529,
534. Unchallenged findings are verities on 'appea-l, Haley v. Med. Disciplinary
Bd., 117 Wn.2d 720, 728, 818 P.2d 1062 (199.1' ). Conclusions of law are |

' reviewed under the “error of law” etartdard. ld.‘ In applying tttis standard, courts .
- accord sdbstantial v;reight to the-a_ger_icy’s interpre-tation of -the law, even though
we may substitute our judgment for that of the agency. /d.

Dr. Ames claims the Commlssron erred by using its own expertise lnstead |
of taklng expert testimony. But an administrative tribunal comprised of medrcal
practitioners is competent to determlne the _proprret_y— of medical conduct wrthout
“expert testimony. Vln re Discipline of‘Br’ownl, 94 Wn. App. 7, 14, 972 P.2d 101
(1 998),‘review denied, 138 Wn.2d 1010 (1999). Here, the Commission was
comprised of two mediCal»professionals and an attorney. It heard testimony from
Dr. Amee as well as anothey’ doctor. The Commiseien was not required to take

any additional expert testimony. /d.; ‘see also RCW 34.05.461(5).
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| The Department alleged Dr Ames violated RCW 18.130.180(4). RCW
18.130.180 defines what acts constituté-dnprofessio.nal conduct for a Heélth care
provider. Speciﬁcally; RCW 18.130.180(4) states .“[i]ncomp,eten'ce, negligence,
or malpractice which. results in-injury to a patient or which creates an '
unreasonable risk that a patient may be harmed” constitutes unprofessional
| condu_ct. The section fUrther states“‘[t]he use of a nontraditional treatment by
itself shall not constitute unprbfessional conduct, provid}ed that it does not result
in injufy to a patient or create ah unreasonable risk that a patient may be
, harméd.” Id. The Cbmmission ‘cohéludéd the Depértment prbved by clear,
cogent, .Aa.,[lgn.A.,QQ.[I,Mi,m,c:i.ngweMl;dl@,_ncé- that Dr. Ames had violated this section by,using»»‘
LISTEN with Platie,nt One. -The doctor assigns error to this conclusion of law; as
well as Seyéral of the Commission’s findings.

Dr. Ames assigns error to the first sentence of finding 1.7, which stated he

did not know the p_hysicsb_ehihd the device or th'e voltage or amperage it used.
In response to questions'fegarding the elé.ctricity sent to the body by LISTEN, Dr.v
Amés testified, “I believe‘ the LISTENldevice sends a current of five ohms, but I'm
not the inventor of the machin‘e, so | can't really give you a reliable answer on
that.”_ Board Record (BR) at 2097-98 Hé later teétiﬁéd, “I don’t know the physics

behind it.” BR at 2156. This finding is supperted by clear and convincing

evidence.
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He als"o assigns error to the last two sentences of finding 1.12, which |
indicate he used the device in éss_essing patients. Dr. Ames testified he ﬁsed the
" device to help him laésess the allergies of his patients and he did use it. He
~ testified he used LiSTEN on about 50 pefc.eht of his patients. The device helped :
.hir-ﬁ to #peed up his assessment of patients. The ﬁnding is suppo'rfed by cléar
and convincing evidence. | |

' vDr. Amés also assigns error to a sentence in finding 1.13 indiéating Patient
~ One described his symptoms on the date of his initial visit; a sentence in finding
- 1.15 that he told Patient One eggs and muétard coﬁld be weakening his body;
and a sentence in finding 1.16 stating he told Patient One hé could cure his egg
a’llergy.v These ﬁndings,_ however, are all supported b_y’ th-e'testimon:y of Patieﬁt
One. | |

- Dr. Ames ass.ig,ns‘error to findings 1.17-1..'23 to the extent an allergy other

thaﬁ hay fever was impliéd. Thes;a findings indicate Dr. Ames _.t_[e.atgq Patient
One for an-'égg allergy. They are ~sFL-|b’p"c'>rte_d. by the patient’s testim-ony..,(‘v Thé
doctor also assigned error to th.e first sentenée. of finding 1.24, whiéh statés he
- told Patient One he could only treat one aliergy at a time and the patient'would
have ‘_to édme back for additional treatments to treat each allergy. Again, this

finding is supported by the .pati‘ent’s testimony.
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Dr. Ames further assrgns error to ﬁndmgs 1.25-1.29, which state Dr. Ames
used LISTEN to treat Patrent Qne for his allergy to eggs, but the device Could not |
provrde such treatment The fndlngs questlon the dlagnosrs of egg allergy and
" indicate Dr. Ames used the device for his.own personal gain and failed to ensure
it was not harmf’ul to his.patients. The findings indicated Dr. AmeS’s use of the
devioe precluded hlm from making a proper diagnOSis and treatrnent, thus
| subjecting Patient One to an unreasonable risk of harm. .Pat-ient One’s testimony
. supports these findings with regard to his vvi'sits and treatment with Dr. Ames, |
‘who admltted usmg LlSTEN with his patlents and that it improved his efﬁCIency in
treating patlents Other patlents testified as to what Dr. Ames told. them about
: LISTEN and how he used lt in thelr treatments Dr. Ames testlﬂed l'[ was possrble
to cure an allergy in-one visit. From thls testlmony, the challenged fmdlngs were
‘supported by clear and convincing evrdence, '
Based on its findings, the Commission'c'onoluded Dr. Ames violated RCW
18.130.180(4). It believed the doctor violated this section because his actions

. created an unreasonable risk that Patient O'ne could be harmed.

Whether LlSTEN had FDA clearance or approval was argued by both
parties.  The Commrss;on found the FDA ad not cleared or approved the device.
(findings 1.3-1.6, CP at 16- -17). Dr. Ames did did not challenge these findings and

-therefore they are verities.- Haley, 117 Wn.2d at 728. Furthermore, these
findings were supported by the testimony of the device’s creator and the FDA. In
any event, FDA clearance, or lack of it, was not of great import in the

~ Commission’s ruling.
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Dr Ames contends the determlnatlon of-negligence under this section was
predlcated on fi ndmg that LISTEN was an meff icacious device because it could
not be used to make an appropnate diagnosis and/or provrde effectlve treatment.
The Commnssron however determlned Dr. Ames used LISTEN to erroneously
dlaQHOSlS and treat an egg allergy and consequently created an unreasonable
risk Patlent One would be harmed. Its conclusion was ba‘sed on the following
facts. |

Dr. Ames testlﬁed about allergies and tests used to diagnose allergies. He
‘ testiﬁed kinesiology, .the arm muscle testing 'process described by Patient One
."can mdlcate an allergy. He also diseussed blood tests and skin tests used by. .
_allerglsts Dr. Ames did use a blood test, but did not do a skin test on Patient
-One He used LISTEN to aSS|st hlm in dlagnosmg allergles but he did not have
any evidence LISTEN was efficacious for dlagnosmg allergles He had only
heard from colleagues that a device srmllar to it was efﬁcacrous Dr. Ames |
admitted he did not understand the physics behind the device and was unsure
what voltage it produced. He did not receive any'claims warnings or labeling
WIth the device. He received no personal tralmng on LISTEN. Patient One
testlfled that in his second visit, Dr. Ames used LISTEN to diagnose and treat an ,»
a_l,le,tgyu.tg,ﬂ,e,g.gs. Based on these facts, the Commission did not e_rr by concluding -

. Dr. Am'es created an unreasonable risk. of harm to Patient One by using LISTEN

10
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to_ diagnose andl treat allergies without any evidence th'e device was effective for
Fhét purpose. Furthermore, he ereated an unreasenable- rislk of harm to Patient ,
Ohe by using LISTENAwithour__ ynderstarrdrng how it worked. Dr. Ames failed to :
establish he had any evidence from vwhi'ch He based his ebneldsion the devijce '
wae appropriate to use in .the dj‘a‘g_‘nosis'and‘treatment of allergi‘es. | |
VDr. Arnes .claims this conclusion rs flawed for two reaSons; Firet, he -
| asserts any error he made was a one-time error-in judgment and did not ‘
constitute negligence. But the C‘omr.nission was not asked to determine if the
- device was inefficacious for every pessible use. vThe-Statement of Charges
.indicated Drv Ames’s use of the deviee with Patient One .constituted negligenee.‘
The charge and the underlying statute i Is specrfrc toa patrent See RCW
.' 18. 130. 180(4) The evrdence clearly and cegently established Dr. Ames s use of ‘
the devrce with Patient One created an unreasonable risk of harm, thus
_ -"establlshlng a violation of RCW 18.130. 180(4) The Commission was not
requrred to conclude the device was inefficacious in all crrcumstances
~ Dr. Ames also' claims the blood.tests establrshed Patient One had an egg
| allergy. Accor’di.ng'ly; the Comm‘is'sion erred by concluding Dr. Am'es’s treatment
of Pati»e'nt One for an egg allergy was based on LISTEN and by eoncluding .
Patient Ohe did not have}a}n e'g‘g allergy. There was evidence that Dr. Ames did

‘a bleod .test on Patient One who testified Dr. Ames told him his blood test

1
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detected an allergy to eggs. But'Dr; Davld Martin, Dr; Ames’s own expert,ﬁ ‘

- testified that a blood test res‘ult alo'ne.was not a.basis for treatment. Patient'O'ne
testified he did not like eggs, but he had no symptoms indicating an allergy to ,
edggs and had never been dlagnosed with an €gg allergy prlor to Dr Ames s

T
diagnosis.

The Comrnission’s ruling, however, was not based oh Dr. Ames’s_

_ 'diagnosis th;at Patient One had an-.egg allergy. It found Dr Ames created an '
- unreasonable risk of harm to Patient One by using.LlSTEN to Hﬁ% hls'egg '

~ allergy. This risk was amplif'ed because Dr. 'Ames did not'understand the

- ‘mechamcs behlnd the device. A blood test suggested the possibility- of an egg

A allergy, but it d|d not change the fact that Dr Ames treated this allergy with a

-device he did not understand and\for which he had no tralnlng Thrs created an

: unreasonable risk of harm

Dr. Ames further clalms his subgosed negligent use o'f LISTEN based on
the_se facts was not charged and thus cannot support the Commission’s -
conclusion. Speciﬂcally, he 'elaims he was not prepared to defend against a
.clalm that Patlent One drd not have an egg allergy But the Statement of
Charges clearly provrdes that his treatment of Patient One was ati issue. It did
not specrﬁcally charge him with mlsdragnosrng an egg allergy, .but the-

Commission’s decision was not.based on a finding. that Patient One had no -egg' -

12
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allergy The decrsmn ‘was based on the finding that Dr. Ames did not properly

treat the allergy and used a devrce wrthout proper investigatlon The Statement ’

| of Charges put Dr. Ames on notice about hisluse of the device. The prehearrng

brief filed by the Department also put Dr. Ames on notice of its posrtion ln these o

circumstances, Dr. Ames cannot claim he was unaware of the facts used by the
'-Department to support its charges._ | |
‘He claims the conclUsion of negligence based on a failure to inyestigate
~was also unsupported and i improper because lt was not charged The charges
against Dr. Ames involved improper use of LISTEN. Contrary to hlS assertion,
the. Department did argue that its case was based upon Dr. Ames’s use of the,
devnce and that it was not proper in his medlcal practice It was Dr. Ames's own
- 'testimony that provided support for the fndlng he did. not understand the devrce
the physrcs behind it, or! how it worked HIS testimony also indicated he dld not
receivei any training or literature on the device. The fi fnding that Dr. Ames did not
‘Eproperly investigate LISTEN prior to usmg it on his own patients was supported ,v
"'by the record. o
Dr. Ames argues that because he practices alternative medicine, the
lCommission impermissibly .dis'criminated against him. He does not c.ite any \
supporting facts in the record.. Moreover, nothing in the record suggests the

Commission members were biased against Dr. Ames or alternative medicine.

13-
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‘A medical provider violates RCW 18.130!180(4) if he.acts in a manner that
creates an unreasonable risk of harm to a‘pati'e.nt. Dr. Ames treated Patient One |
with LISTEN for an egg allergy. He knew very little about the devrce The .
evrdence was clear, cogent and convincing that Dr. Ames s use of the device
created an unreasonable risk of harm. The Commrssron did not err..

Dr Ames also claims the Commlssron erred by determmmg LISTEN was
rnefflcaCIous and he promoted it for his own personal gain. RCW 18.130.180
-states that it is unprofessional conduct for any hcensed health care provrder to
promote for personal. gain an unnecessary or inefficacious drug, device, |
treatment procedure or servrce The statute does not deﬁne meffrcacnous ”

) Webster s defmes “ineffi cacnous” as lacking-the power to produce the desired
effect. WEBSTER S THIRD NEW WORLD DICTIONARY, 1156 (1 993) There was no’
evrdence the devrce was capable of curing allergies. The fi findings support the
conclusion that the devrce was inefficacious for thls sntuatlon :

Dr Ames appears to argue that in order for a device to be rneffrcacrous lt
, must create an unreasonable risk of harm. He urges RCW 18. 130 180(4) to be
read in conjunctron with RCW 18.130.180(16). An appellate court reviews
- questions of statutory constructlon de novo. Ballard Square Condo. Owners

Ass nv. Dynasty Constr Co., 158 Wn.2d 603, 612, 146 P 3d 914 (2006)

14
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The examination begins with the language of the statute and related

- . statutes to determine whether plain statutory language shows the

- intended meaning of the statute in question. If this examination
leads to a plain meaning, that is the end of the inquiry. If the statute
is amenable to more than one reasonable interpretation, a court may
then resort to legisiative history, principles of statutory.construction,
and relevant case law to resolve the ambiguity and ascertain the
meaning of the statute. ' : -

Id (int_e'rnal citations omit't.evd). . | | |
B | RCW 18.130.180 begin; by stating “[t]he foflowing conduct, acts, or
- conditions, constitute unprofessional conduct for ény license Holder or applicant
under the jurisdiction or chapter.” The statute then lists 25 subsections that detail
.~d.ifferent conduct, acts; or c‘:ondition‘s. Each ‘num‘belred s,ubsectfon is se.paraté "
‘and distinct frqrﬁ the others and alone is unprofessional conduct. There is no
' 'baéis for finding th‘at portipns or require_menfs of one subsection must bé. rve.zad__'
into a different _subSéCtion. Thus, RCW 1.8.1.30.1 80(16) does not require that a
| devfcé must demonétréie ‘an”u.nreaéoha_ble risk of harm in order t¢ be
in}efﬁcacious'. | |
Drﬁ Ames f;jrther claims that even if the device was inefﬁcacibus, theré was
no evidencé He 'used it t() promote his bwn personal gain. :The statute does not
- define “promoté.” “Promote” is defined aé “to contribute to the growth,
enlargement or p'rospefity of.” WEBSTER’S THIRD NEW INTERNATIONAL

DICTIONARY, 1815 (1993). The evidence established Dr. Ames used the device
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‘wrth about 50 percent of his patlents He stated his use of the device helped him
speed up | his assessment of patlents Three patients testlﬂed Dr. Ames used the .
device on them. All reported he told them the cure for thelr allergles was |

| provrded or at least substantlally provided, by LISTEN. He also told them he:
could only cure one allergy at a time.

“The Commission entered several findings detailing.Dr. Ames’s use of
LISTEN in his practice. Those .ﬁn'd.-ings were supported by clear and convincing
evidence. The findings in turn support the conclusion that Dr. Ames used the
de\./io.e_to promote his own oersonal gain. The evidence also showed clearly and
con\‘/‘incingly that the device was inefficacious and C'o’uld'not produce the’desired ;
effect. The Commission did not err by ﬁndino Dr Ames had violated RCW '.
18.130.180(16). o - | |

| Dr. Ames argues the sanctlons lmposed were a mamfest abuse of
discretion because the ewdence did not support a fi ndmg that he violated RCW
18.130. 180(4) and 180(16) RCW 18.130.160 authorlzes the lmposmon of
.sanctions based upon ﬁndlngs of unprofesswnal conduct. The Commission’s
t"mdings of unprofessional‘conduct were proper. The sanctions imposed were
| permitted'by RCW 18.130.160. | |

Affirmed.
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A majority of the panel has determined this opinion will not be printed in

the Washmgton Appeilate Reports but it will be filed for public record pursuant to

K@fa T

Kato, J. Pro Tem.

RCW 2.06.040.

WE CONCUR:
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of the License to Practice ) F-’ [ L ED
As a Physician and Surgeon of: ) Docket No. 02-06-A-1012M])
o ) ' JULIOZUUZ |
- GEOFFREY S. AMES,MD ) STATEMENT OF CHARGES Adjudy catr\:e Clorly
. License No. MD00026961' : ) Oiiice ‘
Respondent. ;
’ )

| The Program Manager of t'he'Medi_caI‘ Qnelity Assurance Commission, (Cdnnnission), on -

de_signation’.'by the Commission, makes the zﬂlegati_ons beloiy, which are sunported by eviderice g

contained in program case file 2001-08-0007MD. Any patients referred to in this Statement of

Charges are identified in an attached Confidential Schedule. '

I ' Section 1: ALLEGED FACTS = ,
. l.T Geoffrey S. Ames, MD, Respondent, was 1ssued a hcense to practice as a physmlan ,
- by the state of Washmgton in December 1989. N
‘ - 1.2 Onorabout July 10, 2001 Respondent tested Patlent One for food allergles using.

" an electro-diagnostic dewce called the Life Infonnatlon System Ten device (LISTEN device).
Respondent later admitted to a Department of Health representative that he uses the LISTEN device
to def@ct food allergies in patients. - , o , :

1.3 Th'e LISTEN device uses low voltage to measure galvanic skin resistance.
| 1 4 The LISTEN device is a medical device under the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic
' 'Act, 21 U S.C. § 321(h). A medical devme may not be marketed until there is either an approved
: apphcatlon for premarket approval, pursuant to21 U.S.C. § 360e, or an approved apphcatlon for an
investigational device exemption, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 360j(é). There is no approved ‘
' applicaﬁqn for premafket appro?al or investigational device exemption for the LISTEN device.
1.5 A manufacnuer is exempt ﬁorn the requiremente in the above paragraph if it £ les a
‘  pre-market notification under section 21 U.S.C. § 360(k) and the Food and Drug Admuusuatlon
(FDA) rules the dewce is “substantially equlvalent” to a device already on the market. This is

- knownas receiving “510(k) approval.”.

STATEMENT OF CHARGES - PAGE 1 of3 -
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L6 ) In 1996, the FDA granted “5 10(k) approval” for the Dlgrtal Conductance Meter to
be used for relaxation training in the blofeedback process ' '
1.7  The FDA has not granted “5 10(k) approval” for the LISTEN device. v
1.8 Although a component of the LISTEN deviceis a dlgltal conductance meter, the
LISTBN is different in several sxgmﬁcant respects mcludmg using different software, and i is,
therefore anew device, wl'uch must:meet the requlrements listed in paragraph 1 4, above
1.9 Commercral distribution of a device | prior to obta:mng an approved apphcatlon for -
premarket approval or an investigational device exemption, or rece1v1ng “510(k) approval” results
in the dewce being adulterated under 21 U.S.C. § 351(HA)B).
1.10 - By receiving an adulterated device in mterstate commeice, Respondent has vwlated :
21US.C. §3B10): | |
1.1 1. Even if the “510(k) approval” for the dlgltal conductance meter apphed to the
LISTEN device, Respondent did not use the digital conductance meter for its approved purpose.
1.12 The LISTEN device is a medical device under RCW 69.04.010, The use of an
adulterated or rmsbranded dev1ce is prohlblted under RCW 69.04.040(1) and (3).

Sectlon 2: ALLEGED VIOLATIONS
2.1 The wolatrons alleged in this section constltute grounds for dlsmphnary actxon
pursuant to RCW 18. 130 180 and the ‘imposition of sanctlons under 18.130.160.
2.2 - - The facts alleged in paragraphs 1.2 through 1 12 constltute unprofessional conduct
in Vlolatlon of RCW 18.130. 180(7) which provrdes in part

- . (7) Violation of any state or federal statute or administrative rule
regulating the profession in question, including any statute or rule
defining or establishing standards of patxent care or professional
conduct or practice. .

¥

/"

o

/" | ,

VA | | -
I ' o
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STATE OF WASHINGTON : . FILED'

' DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH _ .
' MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION . FFB o5 2003
o | o | | Adjudicative Clerk Opgge
In the Matter of the License to Practice ) _ _ . -
As a Physician and Surgeon of: ' ) Docket No. 02-06-A-1012M])
GEOFFREY S” AMES, MD ) FIRST AMENDED STATEMENT
* License No. MD00026961 : o ) OF CHARGES
)
" Respondent. y
' )

- The Pfogr’am Manager of the Me’dical Quaiity Assurance COmnﬁssion (Commission), on
de31gnat10n by the Comm1ssmn makes the allegatxons below, which are supported by evidence
contained in prog:ram case file 2001-08-0007MD. Any patients referred to in this First Amended
Statement of Charges are identified in an attached Conﬁdentlal Schedule. '

Section 1: ALLEGED FACTS
1.1 Geof&ey S. Ames, MD, Respondent was issued a license to practice as-a physician
. by the state of Washington in December 1989. '
_ " 12 Onorabout July 10, 2001, Respondent tested Patient One for food allergles using
o : an eleetrq—diagnos_uc dev_1ce called the ALlfC Information System Ten device (LIS’I'EN'dewce).
Respondent iatex admitted to Aa Department ef Health representative that he uses the LISTEN device
to detect food allergies in patients. ’ | SR
13 - The LISTEN aevice uses low voltage to measure galvanic skin resistance.

14  The LISTEI\_I device is a medical device upder the Federal F ood,'Drug and Cosmetic .
Act, 21U.S.C. § 321(h). A medical device haay not be marketed until there is either an approved
application for premarket approval pursuant fo 21US. C. § 360e, or an approved. application for an
mvestlga'aonal device exemptlon pursuant to 21 US.C. § 360j(g). There is no approved
apphcatmn for premarket approval or mvestlgatlonal device exemption for the LISTEN device.

1.5 - A manufacturer is exempt from the requirements in the above paragraph if it files a
pre-market notification under section 21 U.S.C. § 360(k), and the Food and Drug Admiﬁistration
(FDA) rules the device is “substéntially equivalent” te a device a]ready on the market. Thisis
known as receiving “510(k) approval.” .

FIRST AMENDED STATEMENT OF CHARGES - PAGE 1 of 4
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_ 1.6 In1996,the FDA granted “510(k) approval” for the Drgrtal Conductance Meter to
be used for relaxatlon training in the biofeedback process. ‘ s »

1.7  The FDA has not granted “510(k) approval” for the LISTEN device.

‘ 1.8 Although a component of the LISTEN device is a digital conductance meter, the
LISTENis drﬁerent in several significant respects, including usmg different software, and is,
: therefore anew devrce,szvhmh must meet the requlrements listed in paragraph 14, above. ‘

1.9  Commercial drslnbutmn of a device pnor to obtalmng an approved apphcatlon for,
premarket approval or an mvestlgatronal device exemption, or receiving “510(k) approval” results
m  the device being adulterated under 21 U.S. C.§ 351(f)(l)(B) | .

_ 1.10 By recelvmg an adulterated dev1ce in mterstate commerce, Respondent has v101ated

21 US.C. §331(c) '
| 1.11 Even 1f the “510(]() approv ? for the drgrtal conductance meter applred tothe
B LISTEN device, Respondent did not use the digital. conductance meter for its approved purpose
1.12 The LISTEN deviceisa medlcal device under RCW 69. 04 010. . The use of an.
’adulterated or misbranded device is prohibited under RCW. 69.04.040(1) and (3)., :
1.13 Onor about'June 6, 2001, Respondent saw Patient One cornplaining of chron_ic

“ fatigue. Respondent ordered urine and blood tésts and hair analy31s ;
1.14 Onor about July’ 10 2001, Panent One returned to see Respondent to discuss the
| test results Respondent told Patlent One that the blood tests showed a number of food allergres -
Respondent then used the LISTEN device on Patlent One. Respondent had Patient One lie down V
on a table and hold hlS left arm straight up in the air. Respondent then asked Patlent Onectotryto
resist when Respondent attempted to push his-arm down. Respondent pushed on Patient One’s arm
~ butdid not push it down. Respondent then had Patient One holda brass rod in his hand, which was
connected to the LISTEN device, and typed in “eggs” into the device. Respondent asked Patient .
' One to hold his left arm up in the air and to try to resist when Respondent attempted to push his arm
down. Respondent then pushed Patient One’s arm down and told Patient One that this showed he
was allergic to eggs. Respondent repeated the test, but placed a piece of paper over the brass rod
K When Patient One asked Respondent why he placed a prece of paper over the brass rod,
Respondent told him he could emit the EMF frequency for eggs and many other foods through
telepathy, so he hardly needed the device anymore.

FIRST AMENDED STA’I'EMENT OF CHARGES - PAGE 2'of4
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- o " Section2: ALLEGED VIOLATIONS
21 The wolatlons alleged in thls section constrtute grounds for drscrphnary action,

pursuant to RCW 18. 130 180 and the imposition of sanctions under 18.130.160.
2.2 The facts alleged in paragraphs 1.2 through 1.14 constitute unprofessional conduct

in violation of RCW 18.130.180(1), (7), and (16)which prov1des in part

(l) The commission of any act mvolvmg moral turprtude
- dishonesty, or corruption relating to the practice ‘of the person's
: professron whether the act constitutes a crime or not.

()] Incompetence negligence, or malpractice which results in injury
to a patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may

- be harmed. The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not -
constitute unprofessronal conduct, provided that it does not result in
injury to -a patient or create an unreasonable risk that a patrent may
be harmed. :

.

(7) Violation of any state or federal statute or administrative rule
regulating the profession in question, including any statute or rule
defining or establishing standards of pat1ent care or professronal
conduct or practlce

SR The statutes Respondent vrolated are 21U. S C.§ 331(0) and RCW
: ‘ 69.04. 040(1) and (3), which pr0v1de as follows:

/

Sec. 331. - Prohlblted acts
: _The following acts and the causing thereof are prohlblted

(c) The receipt in interstate commerce of any- food drug, device or
cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded, and the delivery or proffered
dehvery thereof for pay or otherwise. :

RCW 69.04.040 Prohibited acts;
The following acts and the causing thereof are hereby prohibited: -
(1) The sale in intrastate commerce of any food, drug, device, or
cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded. :
(2) The adulteration or misbranding of any food, drug, devxce or
cosmetic in intrastate commerce.
" (3) The receipt in intrastate commerce of any food, drug, devrce or
cosmetic that is adultérated or misbranded, and the sale thereof in such -
-commerce for pay or otherwise.

(16) Promotion for personal gam of any unnecessa.ry or inefficacious
drug, devrce treatment, procedure or serv1ce

o FIRST AMENDED STATEMENT OF CHARGES - PAGE 3 of 4
Docket No. 02-06-A-1012MD
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: Section 3: NOTICE TO RESPONDENT
, "The charges in thrs document affect the public health safety and welfare "The Program
' Manager of the Commission- d1rects that a notice be issued and served on Respondent as prov1ded
by law, glvmg Respondent the opportumty to defend against these charges If Respondent fails to
defend against these eharges, Respondent shall be subJect to d1sc1phne pursuant to RCW
"18.130. 180 and the nnposmon of sanctrons under 18. 130 160 .

' DATED this - 3 day of -

STATE OF WASH]NGTON
" DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH :
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

Lisa Noon
- Disciplinary

;(fw%D W‘“

~ Keith Armstrong WSBA # 2379
A531stant Attorney General Prosécutor

| FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY. INTERNAL TRACKING NUMBERS: Program No. 2001-08-06007MD
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STATE OF WASHINGTON
- DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
MEDICAL QUALITY ASSURANCE COMMISSION

In the Matter of the License to Prac’uce
‘as a Physician and Surgeon of

)
) . Docket No. 02-06-A- 1012MD
)

GEOFFREY S. AMES, M.D. ) FINDINGS OF FACT,

)

)

)

)

Llcense No. M000026961 CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
AND FlNAL_ORDER

Respondent

' APPEARANCES:

Respondent, Geéoffrey S. Ames; M.D.
- William Bishin, Attorney atLaw -

Department of Health by
The Office of Attorney General, per
‘Keith D. Armstrong, Assistant Attorney General

COMMISSION PANEL:  Cabell Tennis, J.D., Public Member, Panel Chalr
R S Jan Paxton, PA-C, Pro Tem
_ - Sunanda Uberoi, M.D.
" PRESIDING OFFICER: Arthur E. DeBusschere, Health Law Judge

The Medical Quahty Assurance Commlssron (the Commnssron) convened a B

heanng on January 13-16, 2004 and February 10 2004 . The Department's post-

heanng brief was submltted to the Commrssron on February 25 2004. The
Commission dellberated on March 10, 2004 |

-The Department of Health issued Flrst Amended Statement of Charges allegrng
~ that the Respondent had violated the Uniform Drscrplmary Act. License Suspended

Stayed.

FINDINGS OF FACT,
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW .
AND FINAL ORDER . Page1of20

Docket No. 02-06-A-1012MD : A 001850 '
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ISSUES
Whether the Respondent engaged in unprofessronal conduct within the meamng-

of RCW 18. 130 180(1) (4), (7) and (16)
If the Department proves-unprofessronal conduct, wh.at are the a‘pprop'riate

sanctions under RCW 18_.130.160?'.

: {
|

SUMMARY OF EVIDENCE

~In consrderatron of this matter, ‘the Commrssron heard over thrrty—three hours of -

testrmony and oral argument The Department presented testimony of the followrng
.I W|tnesses Geoffrey Ames, M.D. (the Respondent) Patrent One; Richard Sherman,
Ph.D.; and Neil* Odgen The Respondent testified on his behalf and presented
testlmony of the following wrtnesses Donald Volkman Joan McVey, James Clark; and
- David Martin, M.D. The Department’s had two exhlbrts admitted, Wthh were numbered
as Department's Exhrbrt No 2and Department's Exhrbrt No. 3. The Respondent had

e|ght exhrbrts admitted, Respondent's Exhrbrts Nos. 1-8.

ANALYSIS S

The Uniform Drscrplrnary Act (the UDA) defines what conduct acts, or condltrons‘
constrtute unprofessional conduct. RCW 18 130. 180 In ’(hlS case the Department
| alleged that the Respondent commrtted four vrolatrons under the UDA specifi cally
“RCW 18.130. 180(1) (4) (7) and (16). |
Flrst the Department alleged the Respondent 3 conduct was unprofessronal
- under RCW 18.130. 180(1), unprofessronal conduct is defi ned in part as:

The commission of ‘any act mvolvrng moral turpitude, dishonesty, or
corruption relating to the practice of the person's professron whether the
FINDINGS OF FACT, :

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW :
AND FINAL ORDER L Page 2 of 20.
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i act constltutes a cnme or not.

' RCW 18.130. 180(1) _Dunng the hearing, the Commrssron granted the Respondent'

. motion to dismiss the alleged vnolatlon under RCW 18 130:180(1)..

R RCW 18.130.180(4).

Second the Department alleged the Respondents conduct was: unprofessmnal
under RCW 18 130: 180(4) Wthh is det” ned as: |
N lncompetence negllgence or malpractlce Wthh results in injury to a
patient or which creates an unreasonable risk that a. patient may be
harmed. The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not constitute

‘unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in injury to a
patient or create an. unreasonable risk that a patient may be harmed;

Expert testlmony is helpful but not essential to the Department's case, nor would
' the lack of such testtmony either support or requrre dlsmlssal of the charges against .
Respondent, Johnsz‘on V. Wash/ngton State Medical D/SC/pI/nary Board 99 Wn 2d 466 |
| 663 P.2d 457 ( 1983) Brown V. State Department of Hea/th Dental Disciplinary Board,
’ A94 Wn. App 7, 972 P. 2d 101 (1 998).- Based on the Johnston and Brown cases, the '
' CommlSSIon can use lts own expertlse to evaluate the standard of care regardlng the | .
Respondent's actlons wrth Patlent One No addltlonal expert is necessary to resolve |
-. .this case. RCW 34, 05 461(5) | | |
Thlrd the Department alleged the Respondent’s conduct was unprofesswnal
| under RCW 18. 130. 180(7), whlch is defined as: | | |
Violation of any state or federal statute or admlnlstratlve rule regulating
. the profession in qQuestion, including any statute or rule defi ining or
establishing standards of patient care or professional conduct or practice;

~RCW 18.130.180(7). Specn" ically, the Department charged the Respondent for vvolatlng

- a federal code, 21 U.S.C. § 331(c) which provrdes as follows

FINDINGS OF FACT, .
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW :
AND FINAL ORDER Page 3 of 20

" Docket No, 02-06-A-1012MD 001852



Sec. 331. — Prohibited acts
The following acts and the causing thereof are hereby prohrbrted

(c) The recelpt in lntrastate commerce of any food drug,
_device, or cosmetic that is adulterated or misbranded, and the
delrvery or proffered dellvery thereof for pay or otherwise.

’ The Department also charged the Respondent for violating a state statute,
RCW 69 04.040(1) and (3) Wthh provides as follows
The followmg acts and the causrng thereof are hereby prohibited:
_ (1) The sale in intrastate commerce of any food, drug, device, or
cosmetlc that is. adulterated or mlsbranded ' :
(3) The recelpt in intrastate commerce of any food, drug, devrce or

cosmetic that is adulterated or mrsbranded and the sale thereof in such
commerce for pay or otherwise. . : _

~ This statute is similar to the above federal code 21U.8. C § 331(0) The facts that '
| would apply to the federal code would apply as well to the allegations under
RCW 69. 04 040, regardmg the LISTEN devnce being adulterated or mrsbranded

| In thrs case Mr. Ogden did not know about the LISTEN device that was
purchased by the Respondent erewrse Dr. Sherman not only drd not know about the
LISTEN device, but also had not seen or evaluated it. ln addition, there wasno -
evrdence that the manufacturer or the Respondent made signifi cant changes to the
LISTEN devrce that it thereby became adulterated. There was no evidence that the .
Respondent mislabeled the LISTEN devrce' thus, there was’ no evidence that it was
misbranded. Finally, the Department falled to offer evrdence that the Respondent

| delrvered or offered it for delrvery to sémeone else for pay During the hearlng, the
' Commrssron granted the Respondent's motion to dismiss the allegation of

unprofessional conduct under RCW 18. 130 180(7) .

FlNDlNGS OF FACT
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW . :
AND FINAL ORDER : Page 4 of 20
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)

Fourth the Department alleged the Respondent’s conduct was unprofessnonal

undef RCW 18.130. 180(16) which i is; def' hed as: =

Promotlon for personal gain of any unnecessary or meff‘ icacious drug,
device, treatment procedure, or service; _

-RCW 18 130. 180(16)

Dunng the heanng, the Commlssmn heard and observed the testlmony of Patlent
- -One and the Respondent The Commission f nds Patient One credlble when he

'testlf ed about h|s vusrts thh and treatment by the Respondent on June 6, 2001 and - '
CJuly 11, 2001 The Commlssmn did not fi nd the Respondent credible when he testifi ed o

about hlS treatment of Patlent One on these dates. RCW 34, 05 461,

| I. FINDINGS OF FACT

1.1 | Geoffrey S Ames M.D., the Respondent was issued by the state of

: Washmgton in December 1989 alicense to practlce asa phys1cnan and surgeon The
Respondent compteted a pathology res:dency He completed a year of mtemal
medlcme training. He started a famlly practtce in Gardnervﬂle Nevada The
Respondent is board-certlt‘ ed in hohstlc medlcme The Respondent took an
acupuncture course at UCLA San Francnsco Smce 1995, he has been practlcmg asa .
physncnan in Rlchland Washmgton The Respondents practice mcludes the followmg |
specialties: NAET1 allergy therapy, JMT allergy therapy, neuromodulatlon technique

- allergy therapy, acupuncture acupressure and dermatology

! NAET stands for Nambudnpad Altergy Elimination Technique. Dew S. Nambudnpad developed the
-NAET, which isa techmque that treats allergles using acupressure .
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1.2 The Life lnfon'natlon System Tens devrce (the LISTEN device) is a
galvanic skin response machrne The LlSTEN devrce consists of a keyboard, monrtor
a computer with hardware, foot mouse black box used to create the crrcurt S0 an
ohmmeter wrll work. The black box has awiretoa metal probe that is held by the
| . patient in his/her hand. The LISTEN device is an electromc skln response devrce and it

measures changes in resrstance whrch is the rmpedlment of a ﬂow of electncal current

The LISTEN devrce uses low voltage a current of five ohms to measure galvanrc skin t ‘

e

'~ }resrstance
1.3 James Clark developed the LISTEN devrce On January 7, 1992, he -
' submrtted rnformatron ona LISTEN device to the Unrted States Food and Drug

"Admlnrstratlon (FDA) The LISTEN system was described as having electrodermal
screening technrques altematrve medicine techniques and broenergetrc technrques

' The device was not cleared with that labelrng It did not receive pre-market approval

- srnce it was not substantlally equivalent to predrcate devrces studred by the FDA

14 In August 1992 James Clark made a submrssron for the Drgrtal
.Conductance Meter (DCM) to clear the ohmmeter and the capabrlrty for the Listen
System without the acupuncture clalms and to market the LISTEN devrce The FDA
cleared the DCM asa brofeedback devrce for relaxatron tralmng The DCM had been
submrtted for other uses, but those were removed from the FDA fi le

1.5 James Clark has a number of upgraded models that are galvamc skin
response devrces They are called the Onon the Pegasus and the Mira. These

upgraded devices have the same hardware as the LISTEN device; they both h_ave the

i
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e ene ORI

ohmmeter computer software and the signal generator. The only dlfference between
~ the LISTEN device and the later devices was. that the LlSTEN device was-a DOS-
| operated system while these .upgraded dewces were a WlNDOWS based system
1.6 In 1996, James Clark obtained clearance from the FDA for the Orion, the |

Pegasus and the era In 1996 the FDA notifi ed him that his devices (the-Orion, the
| Pegasus and the Mrra) were substantlally equlvalent toa predrcate devnce which .
| permitted hrm to proceed to market the devices. James Clark recerved a pre-market
clearance "nota pre-market “approval.” Nevertheless he could not market the _

” dewces as being cleared because the public might think that the FDA had approved
~ them. - o '
1.7 The Respondent does-not know the thSlCS behlnd the LlSTEN device,
nor did he know the voltage or amperage that the LlSTEN device produces The

Respondent understands the LISTEN dewce functlons llke a blofeedback machrne but

it is used |n dlfferent ways He used it in combmatron wnth krnes:ology Kinesnology is |
based on the theory that an lmbalance in acupuncture mendlans WI” make muscles
| weak, The Respondent learned kmesrology froma NAET course. ' |

1. 8 The Respondent heard about the LISTEN devuce from colleagues from
vendors ‘and from attendlng conferences of the Ameri¢an Academy of Environmental
_ Medlcrne The Respondent has owned the LlSTEN device since 1997 when he bought
it from the company owned by James Clark. The LISTEN device was made-in Utah.

1. 9 The Respondent lea_rned to opeérate the LISTEN device from his
c‘olleagues and.from the manual, whlch told him how to operate it. The manual did not
FINDINGS OF FACT, |
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make any clalms on its use and. prov:ded basnc mstructlons on how to tum lt on and off.

| The LISTEN device had no labelmg onit.- |
1.10 He also sent his office nurse to a course to learn about the LISTEN
'devuce The nurse leamed how to use it for Electrodermal Screenlng (EDS). Onone:
hand this was not helpful because he does not do EDS On the other hand, lt was
helpful because it mcreased hlS understandmg and knowledge about the devuce The _
| Respondent obtalned mformatlon about the LISTEN devrce from others colleagues B
~ including Dr. Nambudnpad who uses a machrne srmllarto it, but who purchased it from
a different manufacturer : _ _ o | E ' {
i 1.11  Before the Respondent purchased the LISTEN device, he talked wrth
~ James Clark who mformed him that it was registered with the FDA The Respondent
- purchased a device that could be sold to him by the manufacturer The Respondent A |
' purchased the LlSTEN devrce in good falth | |
1.12 Although the Respondent does not charge his patlents specrf‘cally for its
| ‘use, the Respondent bills hls patlents for visits that mclude the LlSTEN device’ S use.
The device helps in his assessment and speeds up his patlent vrsuts When he sees a
patlent the LlSTEN devrce is part of the whole picture of assessment and treatment
' 1.13 The Respondent saw Patient One on two occasions: June 6, 2001 and
| July 1 0 2001 At the initial visit, Patient One.informed the Respondent that he had -
- been tired. Just before the initial vrsrt Patlent One filled out a health history provided by'
the Respondent Patient One descnbed the symptoms that he felt the day of the initial
visit. Patlent One felt fatlgue and experlenced slugglshness and that these symptorns
FINDINGS OF IFACT,
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.' : were severe Pattent One frequently ttred easnly and felt weak He expenenced apathy
Land lethargy and the symptoms were severe. |
“ 1. 14 At the initial visit, the Respondent discussed metal toxncrty and metal
- | p0|somng wnth Patlent One The Respondent talked about his alternative medlcme
| practlce and mformed Patient One that he would send hlm to the Tri-Cities laboratory
for blood and unne testmg The Respondent took a halr sample The fi rst visit lasted
about 30 to 45 mmutes » v' N
1. 15 Dunng the second visit on .luly 10, 2001, the Respondent revrewed
| Patlent One's laboratory tests results. The Respondent reported to Pattent One that he B
had a mlneral imbalance, mineral det" cvencres and that his testosterone level should be
higher.' He reported that Patient One might have some metal porsonlng which would-
| contnbute to the tlredness He mformed Patlent One that he should undergo treatment
for the metal porsonmg The Respondent also mformed Patlent One that foods llke
| eggs and mustard could be weakenlng hlS body. - A
1 16 The Respondent informed Patient One that he had a machme that could
'be used to find out what was gomg on wnth his body. The machlne that the- Respondent'
was refernng;to wasthe LlSTEN devrce. The Respondent informed Patient One that
he would place a probe in his hand and the probe was ‘connected to the LISTEN
device. The Respondentinformed Patient One that the LISTEN devloe helped him
make a dmgnosrs The Respondent mformed Patlent One that he could cure the egg

. allergy and that eggs would not bother htm agaln
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1.17 Before usrng the LISTEN devrce the Respondent assessed the strength
. of Patient One 's deltoid muscle to obtain a baselme The Respondent had Patrent One
lie on his back. The Respondent put the probe in Patrent One's right hand and rarsed
Patlent One s nght arm toa 90 degree pomt from his body Patlent One had a nng on -
hlS left-hand and on hrs right wnst he wore a watch. The Respondent asked Patlent ~
One to resist as hard as he could whlle the Respondent tried to pull hIS arm down next
to Patlent One's body. Dunng thls test, Patient One resrsted pretty well and Patrent
One's resrstance was strong _ , ‘

1.18 The Respondent used the LISTEN device when he conducted the next"
muscle assessment While Patient One was still lying on h|s back the Respondent put
'the probe in Patient One S nght hand and raised Patlent One's right arm to a 90 degree

_ point from his body. Thls time the Respondent had the LISTEN device operatrng and

' using the keyboard he typed in the word “eggs The Respondent again asked |
Patient: One to resist as hard as he could while the Respondent tned to pull- Patlent '
One's arm down ThlS t|me the Respondent was then able to easily pull Patient One's
arm down. When this occurred, the Respondent lnformed Patient One that he could
pull his arm down because his body had been compromlsed due to the egg allergy

-1 19 Next, for the treatment the Respondent had Patient One roll over on.his.
| stomach and the Respondent thumped Patlent One on hlS back wrth an acupressure
~ device. The dev1ce had rubber tlps onitlike a plunger.' Whlle. the Respondent.

| thumped Patient One on his back, he mentloned"acupressure;
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1 20 After the acupressure treatment the Respondent assessed whether it
affected the muscles The Respondent had Patient One roll over on his back again and
»the Respondent gave Patrent One the probe. that was connected to the LISTEN device.
“The Respondent had Patrent One ralsed his arm to a 90 degree posrtron and the = -
: procedure was repeated. The Respondent could not pull Patrent One s am down The
Respondent then sald “See it's gone - |

1 21 After the Respondent used the LISTEN devnce the. Respondent
| performed an. fi nal assessment The Respondent wrapped the probe in tissue paper
. and then had Patient One hold the probe wrth the tissue paper wrapped around it.
Patient One asked him, why he dld this. The Respondent answered that he has done
this so long, that he could do what the machlne could do and that he dld not need the

S

machine anymore. o - »
| l.22 | After thisseries of assessments and .treatment the Respondent advised :
',Patlent One that he should not. eat any eggs for 24 hours or perhaps 48 hours or the
treatment would not take Patient One understood that the Respondent had dragnosed :
that he was allergrc to eggs, that the Respondent provrded treatment and that the

':Respondent cured him of his egg allergy Patient One understood that he would be

able’ to eat eggs and would have no. allergrc reaction.

1.23 ln 1976—80 Patrent One had been dragnosed by another health care
practltloner that he was allerglc to blowmg dust and poliens for which Patlent One took

shots to help relieve the symptoms. He had also been dragnosed with hay fever, with
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A
| resultrng symptoms of resplratory difficulties, feelrng plugged up, srnus drarnage, and
rtchmg of eyes. ‘
1 24 At the end of the second visit, the Respondent mformed Patrent One that

- he could only treat one allergy ata tlme and that he would need to come in for
addltlonal visits to treat each. allergy The Respondent wrote out some prescnptrons -
and suggested that the Respondent srgn up for addutlonal treatments The Respondent
prescnbed testosterone DHEA, multl mrneral vrtamrns and a low glycemrc index diet to |
be followed by a Metabolic typrng dlet g
. 1.25 As a-physrcran, the Respondent used the LlSTEN _devioe to treat Patient
One for an egg,allergy.- The LISTEN device was ineff oacious-and did not cure an egg
allergy The' LlSTEN devioe did not provlde any manner of treatment or assessment

‘ Before the Respondents assessment and treatment for an egg allergy, Patient One |
E had not been dlagnosed to be allerglc to eggs or mustard orany food allergles There

- Was no cllnlcal evrdence to support the Respondent's assessment and treatment that
Patlent One had an egg allergy Before his vrsrt with the Respondent Patrent One had
| _not been advrsed that he was allergrc to eggs and had no reactlon to eatrng eggs -
_ except that he does not llke to eat them ‘

1 .26 - The Respondent promoted the use of the LISTEN devrce ln hrs practrce '

and for his own personal gain. He informed Patient One that he uses it for treatment. o
‘ He bllled Patient One for his treatment, which included using the LlSTEN device. The

Respondent was able to speed up hIS assessment and treatment by usmg it. He
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- suggested to Patient One to return for additional treatments so he can treat each

.individual allergy

1 27 . As a physrcran the Respondent farled to take the necessary safety

' measures 1o ensure that the LISTEN devrce would not be harmful to his patients. The .

'Respondent obtamed no. lrterature or had no labeling on the LISTEN device, and he did

not receive any personal tralnmg on |ts use..The Respondent only lrstened to hlS

colleagues and to a salesperson The Respondent dld not know the voltage or

" amperage that the LISTEN devrce produces.

- 1.28 . The Respondent’s use of the LISTEN device, an inefficacious device,

precluded.him from making- as a physician an appropn'ate dlagnos'is and treatment. By :

-using his credentlals as physician, the Respondent took advantage of Patlent One to.
'use an lneff‘ cacrous device to allegedly assess, treat and cure an egg allergy By usrng
\the LISTEN devnce in his assessment and treatment of Patrent One on July 10 2001 for

- an egg allergy, the Respondent was neglrgent in his practrce asa physrcran The

Respondent's use of the LISTEN devnce was not nontraditional treatment.
1.29 Maklng a false medical diagnosis through the use of an rneff cacrous
device, provrdlng an meffectlve treatment and mlsmformlng Patlent One that he had _

been cured, the Respondent subjected him tounreasonable risk of harm. The'

Respondent's reliance on the LISTEN device, an lneft“ cacrous devrce created an

' unreasonable risk of harm to Patient One

i

HIHHITHI
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. CONCLUSIONS oF LAW

2.1 | The Commrssnon has jurisdiction over the Respondent’s llcense and over
the subject matter of this. proceedlng RCW 18. 71 RCW 18.130.

2.2 . The Washmgton Supreme Court has held that the standard of proof in
| drsciplmary proceedings agalnst physrcrans before the Washmgton State Medlcal
Quallty Assurance Commrssron is proof by clear and convmcmg evrdence Nguyen v
Department of Health, 144 Wn.2d 516, 534, cert. den/ed 535 u.s. 904 (2002)
| 2.3 ‘Based upon Ftndmgs of Fact,.Paragraphs 1.1, 1.2 and Paragraphs 1. 7
| ..through 1.30. above along with the above Analysrs the Commrssnon concludes that the .
'Department proved by clear and convrncmg ev;dence that Respondent vrolated
RCW 18.130. 180(4) and (16). | |

2 4 Based upon Fmdmgs of Fact Paragraphs 1.1 through 1.6 above along
. with the above Analysrs the Commrssron concludes that, the Department falled to prove
-by clear and convmcrng evndence that Respondent violated RCW 1 8.130.180(7). This |
.charg'e_.' under RCW 18.t30 180(7). shall be dismissed‘-

.25 Based upon Findings of Fact along with the above Analysrs the.
Commlssmn concludes that the Department failed to prove by clear and convmcmg
ewdence that' Respondent violated RCW' 18.130.180(1). The Respondent purchased '
the LISTEN device in good faith. The decisionto use a}n i»nefﬁcacious device, even
‘th'ough its use resulted in un.profes'sional ‘con'duot did not constitute an act of moral

- turpitude, dishonesty, or corruptlon This charge undér RCW 18 130.1 80(1) should be

dismissed.
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- 26 Asa result of the unprofesswnal conduct found under
RCW 18. 130 180(4) and (16), the Commission may lmpose sanctions The ﬂrst
conSIderation is the protection of the public. RCW 18. 130 160 o
‘ R 27 Based upon the above,Flndings of- Fact Analysis ‘and Conclusions of Law,
the Commnssron concludes that the’ Respondent's llcense should be suspended but the
| suspension should be stayed provided that he complles wnth the condrtions ordered
below. The Respondent should not be permrtted to use the LISTEN. device with
patients. The Respondent should pay afi ne for his conduct and' he should be
-' monitored dunng this. penod of stayed suspensnon including a regular review of hrs
patlent records. The Commrssron concludes that these conditions are necessary to -

 ensure that suﬁ”crent safeguards are in place to pro‘tect the public.v
Cm. ORDER
Based on the foregorng, the Commrssron hereby issues in this case the followmg

. ORDERS

3.1 StaYed Suspension. The license to practice as a physician and'surﬁgeon
in the state of Washington held by the Respondent Geoffrey S. .Ames M.D., .is
SUSPENDED for a penod of at least fi ive (5) years from the date of servrce of this
- Order. The suspensmn of the Respondent’s license is hereby STAYED PROVIDED
that the Respondent complies with-the following terms and conditions in this Order

| 3.2, leitatlon on Practlce The Respondent shall not use the LISTEN device

to assess for or to treat allergies Further, the Respondent shall not have the LlSTEN

device in his medical office(s) fwhere he sees and/or treats patients.
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3.3 Record Revrews Withln thirty (30) days from the effective date of this

. Order or as soon thereafter as. deemed by the Commrssron or ltS desrgnee the,
Department shall conduct a review of 10 to 15 patient records randomly selected, on a
' quarterly basrs Aftera compllance heanng i, revrew of thrs condltion the Commlssron o
at its dlscretion may order the record’ revrews to contrnue this quarterly revrew of the ‘
Respondent's records for an addltlonal penod as long as the Commnssron deems it

 necessary.

34 Quarterlv Declaratlon The Respondent shall submit a quarterly

"declaration under penalty of perjury statmg whether there has been compllance wnth all '
conditions of the Order. The quarterly declarations shall be submitted to the

Y'Commissron on the first day of the followmg months September December March

| »and June unless ordered otherwrse by the Commrssron .

3 5 Compliance with Laws and Rules The Respondent shall obey all federal

_state, and local laws and all rules govemlng the practlce of medrcnne and surgery in the
state of Washlngton _ | _
3.6 ﬂne -The RespOndent shall pay an administrative ﬁne to the Comm-ission '
_in the amount of $5, 000 (five thousand dollars) within 180 '\days of the entry-of the. _

effectlve date of this Order The payment shall- be made payable to the Washlngton

' State Treasurer and sent to the followmg address

- Medical Quality Assurance Commission
P.O.Box1099 -~
- Olympia, WA 98507-1099
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3.7 Appearance at Compliance Hearrnqs The Respondent shall appear

before the ‘Commission six months from the effectrve date of thrs Order or as soon
thereafter as the Commiission's schedule penmts and shall present proof that he is
'complymg with th;s Order. He shall continue to- make such complrance appearances
every SIX months, or as frequently as the Commrssron othen/vlse requrres untll the
penod of stayed suspension, is tenmnated by the Commrssron The Respondent shall -
be glven notrce of the comphance heanng, and if he fails to comply with this Order, the
' Commtssnon may lrnpose other sanctlons as appropnate under RCW 18.130.160 to

| protect the public. Further after a compliance hearing, the Commission may determrne
that the Respondent is in compltanc.e and that he need not personally appear for a six-
month compliance hearing. | . |

3.8 Costs The Respondent shall be responsrble and shall pay for any and.all

costs lnvolved in hIS compllance with any and all condrtlons in thrs Order

- 3.9 Responsrbrhtv for Provrqu Current Address The Respondent shall

" ensure that the Commission has hrs current practrce and resndence addresses and
‘.telephone numbers The Respondent shall notlfy the Commrssron in wntrng of any

address change wrthln twenty (20) days after the change.

3. 10 Placed on Notlce The Respondent is hereby placed on notice that it is

: hrs responsrbrhty to ensure that all requrred reports are submrtted to the Commrssron on

' trme and in the manner specified in thls Order

" 3.41 Periods of Out of State Practlce. In the event the Respondent should

leave Wash,ingtonAState to practice or reside outside the state, the Respondent shall
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notify the Comrnission in writing, of the date of clep'arttlre and retum. | Periods of

: resndency or pract:ce outsrde Washlngton State will nat apply to the reductlon of thrs

five (5) year period of suspensron

3.12 Modifi catron of Order Except as provrded above, the Respondent may

~ petition the Commtsslon for modifi cation of thlS Order no sooner than five (5) years from

the date thls Order is signed. Upon notice duly given by the Commlssmn the h

Respondent shall appear personally before the Commrssron to present evidence in

_support of the petrtion Evidence in opposmon to the petrtlon may also be presented for
A the Commlssron s consrderatlon The Commission has sole drscretlon to grant or deny

‘ the Respondent’s petition for modlf catlon and has the authority to impose restrictions

and/or conditions on the Respondent’s license topractlce as long as the Commission’s
Junsdlctron over the Respondent, pursuant fo this Order contrnues _

3 13, Termmatron of this Order After the Respondent completes the conditions

of the stayed suspensron and after five (5) years from the effectlve date of this Order the

Respondent may file a petmon for tem'nnatron of the stayed suspension and for a license
to practlce medicine and surgery in the state of Washmgton wrthout restnctlons and

condltrons Ata heanng on the petition, the Department may present evidence i in

‘ opposmon to be consrdered by the Commlssron After consrdenng the. petltlon and the .

evidence presented the Commrssron has the sole discretion to grant or deny the '
Respondent's pet:tlon and has the authority to remove or to impose restrictions and/or

conditions on the Respondent's license to practlc‘e as long as the jurisdiction remains

| over the Respondent, pursuant to this Order.

7
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3.14 . Vrolatlon of Order. If the Respondent vrolates any provusron of thls order, -

: the Commlssron after giving the Respondent notice and the opportunity to be heard,
- may set aside the stay order and impose the suspension,' or may impose any sanction

as it»ﬁnds'appropriate under RCW 18.130.160, or may'take emergency action -ordering -
summary suspension restnctlon or limitation of the Respondent's practlce as authorized

by RCW 18. 130 150.

" 3.15 The charges in this matter that the Respondent's conduct vrolated

. RCW 18 130 180(1) and (7) are DISMISSED
Dated thisS ©_day of May, 2004,
Medical Quality Assuranee Commission

H

CABELL TENNIS JD.
‘. Panel Charr

FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY (lnternal tracking numbers)
Program No 2001-08-0007

CLERK’S SUMMARY

Charges o o Action
RCW 18.130. 180(1) . Dismissed
 RCW 18.130.180(4)  ~  Violated
RCW 18.130.180(7) Dismissed
RCW'18.130.180(16) . Violated
FINDINGS OF FACT, -
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW ‘
ANDFINALORDER - Page 19 of 20

001868
Docket No. 02-06-A-1012MD




' NOTICE TO PARTIES |

This—ordef is subject to the reporting requirements of RCW 18.130.110, Section
1128E of the Social Security Act, and any other applicable interstate/national reporting

- Fequirements. If adverse action is taken, it must be reported to the Healthcare Integrity
Protection ’Dat‘a“ Bank. - T -

- 'Eifhfe’r paArt’y may file a petition for reconsideration. RCW 34.05.461(3);
RCW 34.05.470. The petition must be filed within 10 days of service of this Order with:.

The Adjudicative Clerk Office
* P.O. Box 47879
Olympia, WA 98504-7879'

and é'copy rhust be sent to: |

VMedical Quality Assurance Commission .
' _ . PO Box 47866
Olympia, WA 98504-7866

The petition must staté'the specific grounds upon which reconsideration is reqUésted
and the relief requested. The petition for reconsideration is considered denied 20 days

after the petition is filed if the Adjudicative Clerk Office has not responded to the petition

~ or served written notice of the date by which action will be taken on the petition.

: - A petition for judicial review. must be filed and served within 30 days after ]
service of this order. RCW 34.05.542." The procedures are identified in. chapter 34.05
RCW, Part V, Judicial Review and Civil Enforcement. A petition for reconsideration'is

ot required before seeking judicial review. If a petition for reconsideration is filed, -

however, the 30-day period will begin to run upon the resolution of that petition.

'RCW 34.05.470(3).

The order remains in effect even if a petition for reconsideration or petition for

review is filed. “Filing” means actual receipt of the document by the Adjudicative Clerk
- Office. RCW 34.05.01 0(6). This Order was “served” upon you on the day itwas
deposited in the United Sta_te,s mail. RCW 34.05.010(19). i
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APPENDIX 4

Department of Health Regulations
WAC 246-11-250
WAC 246-11-260
WAC 246-11-520
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‘ Model‘Procedural:Rulésifor Boards

i A subpoena may-be served by any suitable- person
n years of age or older by: ‘ :
iLiiving a copy to the person to whom the subpoena is

l.cuvmg a copy ‘at the resrdence of the person to
ubpoena is’ addressed wrth a person -of surtable age
clion; L
#1 Sending a’copy by mail to the current address ‘on ﬁle
e program if the person is licensed by the board or has
s wpplication for a license with the board; or :
| “sendmg acopy by certified inail with proof of receipt
igeson is neither l1censed by -nor’ has apphed for-a
with the board. : St
Proof of service may-be made by
Affidavit of personal service; =
Certification by the person mallmg the subpoena toa
holder or applicant; or
Return .or acknowledgment: ShOWan rece1pt by the
subpoenaed. or his/her.representative. Any person
g certified or registered mail at the last known
s 0f the person subpoenaed shall be consrdered an
ilesl representative.. . : :
% 'I'e presiding ofﬁcer, upon. motron made promptly
¢ the time specified for compliance in the subpoena,

-

Quash or.modify: the subpoena:if the subpoena is
ible or requrres evrdence not relevant to any mattetr
i (.()ndl,non denial of the monon uponqust afid reason- gitgulxtlorzyso ﬁ’le
siditions, including advancement -of the reasonable
the person.on whose behalf the subpoena is issued of
ag the books, documents, or tangible things; or. : .
Issue a protective order under RCW:34.05.446. - , y 260 Amendment of 1mtlatmg ‘docu-
% ‘The board may seek - enforcement of a subpoena = ments: iox:td-the' «date litiating:documents.
RUW 34.05.588( l) or proceed in default pursuant to el ;

b6 11-280. ¢ -

iy f\ulhonty "RCW 18.130. 050(1) and 18:130. 060(3) 94- 04 078,§
b20, filed 1/31794,; efféctive-3/3/94;-Statutory’ Authorityz- RCW:

4% 1), 4.24.240, 4.24.250 .and: 4.24.260. 93-08-003. (Order 347),'§
b filed 3/24/93 effecuve 4/24/93 | ;

'AC 246-1'1‘-230 V;Pres‘id_i,nge officer and panel mem:

i§3 The board may appoint one or more pefsons as pre-

sificer for brief adJudlcatwe proceedmgs as prov1ded

" 246-11-430(1). . i .

is ‘The board shall authonze one of the followmg to

¢ presiding officer for ad_}udlcatrve proceedmgs

» A board member; or A

An  individual - appomted pursuant to RCW

W5 (K 5(3); or ) #

ey An administrative-law Judge employed by the ofﬁce
nistrative hearings. .. :

¢ Ihe board may des1gnate certam of its members to

mﬂ.xtter as a hearing panel as provided by law.

iy Any party may move to' disqualify the pres1d1ng

or 4 member of the board hearing the matter, as pro—

it in RCW 34.05.425(3). )

jt-vs Authority: RCW 18.130.050(1) and 18 130.060(3). 94-04-078, §

210, filed 1/31/94, effective 3/3/94. Statutory Authotity: RCW 246 11-260, flled /94 ff etory
1611, 93-08-003 (Order 347). § 246-F1-230. filed 3724/93. effec- 84130, 050“\ HHd'34.05: '220 308003 (OFdér 347V §946-11-260: flled :




Bwanda proposed order
{8wtutory, Authority: RCW, 18 130.050(1) and 18. 130 060(3). 94-04- 078 §

© I1:£30.050¢1). 93-08-003: (Order 347), § 246 1'1-500 ﬁled 3124/
five 4/24/93] neh s

WAC 246-11- 510 Issuance of ﬁnal order. If the adJu-
dicative proceeding is heard by the-board or 4 panel of the:
Baard the:presiding-officer and board or panel of the board
ihall: r

eﬂnclusrons of Taw-and an order’ &nd’ )

(2) Cauge the Iadjudrcatlve clerk’ office to seivea copy of
ifie order G each: party -and’ ‘any desrgnated representatlve of
e party: :
Siautory Authority: RCW 18.155.040 971 015‘ § 24611-510, filed.
58197, effective 7/7/97- Statutory Authorrt *RCW 1 O 050(1) and
1%.130.060(3). 94:04:078; § 246-11-510; ﬁied 1431/94,; effedtivei8/3/94::
Yitutory. Authority: REW 18.130.050(1).93- 08 003 (Order 347) §246 11-
390. filed 3/24/93, effective 4/24/93] o

WAC 246 11' 520 Standard of pr of The order shall
## based on the kind of evidenceupon which- reasonably pru-
dant persons.are accustomed to. 1ely in the:conduct of their:
ffairs. Incall cases.involving;an application for license the
irden shall be on the applicant to.establish that the.applica-
tin meets.all apphcable criteria, In all other cases the burden
on the department to prove the allegéd factual basis set
forth in the initiating -‘document: Except as'otherwise pro-
wided by statute, the burden in all casesis &' preponderance of

(3) Each respo :ent m a consohdated proceedmg shall
fi#tain the right to. representatron T

l%k\lulory Authonty RCW“I&l 02050(1) ‘and 18:130. 060(3) 9 -04-078 §
B+ .1:530; filed 1/31/94, efféctive: 3/3/94: Statutory Authorityi RCW
if¥. 130. 050(1) and 34.05.220.. 93 08-003 (Order 347) § 246-11-530, filed
4193, effectrve 4/24/93] . TS

WAC, 246 11 -540 Imtlal order. (1) If the adjudrcatlve
3 ﬁwmcedmg is not heard by the board or panel of the board the:
piesiding officer-shall; . . ;

- faet, conclusions of law; an roposed orders:.: TN
(b) Cause the adju. 1cat1ve.c1erk office to serve a: copy of
- #hw initial.order on. each party and any desi gnated representa-,
- five ofaparty, and .- . bt AT e L

- o}p0S Ed.)

. Modél Pro cedupa-rfnulasrforfnoafdse?s~

presiding ofﬁcer proposed ﬁndmgs of: fact and conclusrons of

336 11-500; filed 1/31/94 effectlve 3/3/94.; Statutory Authorrty RCW '

(1), Issue a final’ order contalmng ﬁndlngs of fact and‘

(a) Issue an 1n1t1a}~order contarmng",proposed ;ﬁ dmgs of -

2’46."?-»1”1‘1?.-56&

() Forward thé:initial:: ;der dnd record. of:the: adjudrca-,
tive proceedmg to the adjudlcatwe clérk office, : W
Imt1a1 orders on: bnef ad_]udrcanve'proceedmg shall :

(b) Fm. “orders’ may adopt by '
in whole or'm part

orders shall,be effectlve when\entered.but a party shall*not e
' [Title:246: WAC—p 1913
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RCW 18.130.180
518.130.180. Unprofessienai conduct

The following conduct, acts, or conditions constitute unprofessional conduct
“for any license holder or applicant under the fjur_isd-iction' of this chapter’:'

"(1) The commission of any act 1nvolvmg moral turpltude, dlshonesty, or

: corruptlon relating to the practice of the person s professmn whether the act
constitutes a crime or not. If the act constitutes a crime, conviction in a criminal
proceeding is not a condition precedent to disciplinary action. Uponsucha -
conviction, however, the judgment and séntence is conclusive evidence at the
ensuing drsc1p11nary hearing of the gurlt of the license holder or applicant of the
crime described in the indictment or information, and of the person's violation of

- the statute on which it is based. For the purposes of this section, conviction

includes all instances in which a plea of guilty or nolo contendere is the basis for -
the conviction and all proceedings in which the sentence has been deferred or
suspended Nothing in this section abrogates rights guaranteed under chapter
9.96A RCW : . -

2) Mlsrepresentatlon or concealment of a material fact in 0bta1mng a l1cense orin
reinstatement thereof;

- (3) All ‘advertising which is false, fraudulent, Qr.misleading;'

| “) Incompetence, negllgence, or malpractlce ‘which results in mJury to a
‘ 'patlent or which creates an unreasonable risk that a patient may be harmed.

The use of a nontraditional treatment by itself shall not constltutei

unprofessional conduct, provided that it does not result in injury to a
patient or create an unreasonable risk that a patlent may be harmed

(5) Suspension, revocation, or restrlctlon of the 1nd1v1dua1's license to practlce any
health care profession by competent authority in any:state, federal, or foreign -
jurisdiction, a certified copy of the order, stipulation, or agreement being

~ conclusive evidence of the revocation, suspension, or restriction;

(6) The possession, use, prescription for use, or distribution of controlled
ssubstances or legend drugs in any way other than for legitimate or therapeutic
purposes, diversion of controlled substances or legend drugs, the violation of any
drug law, or prescribing controlled substances for oneself; ‘

(7) Violation of any state or federal statute or administrative rule regulating the
profession in question, including any statute or rule defining or establishing

standards of patient care or professional conduct or practice;

(8) Failure to cooperate with the disciplining authority by:



(a) Not furmshlng any papers or documents

| (b) Not ﬁlrmslung in Wr1t1ng a full and complete explanatmn covering the matter
contamed in the complaint filed with the disciplining authonty, ,

(c) Not responding to subpoenas issued by the d1501phmng authonty, whether or not
the recipient of the subpoena is the accused in the proceedmg, or

(d) Not providing reasonable and tlmely access for authorlzed representatiVes of the '
disciplining authority seeking to perform practice reviews at fac111t1es utilized by the -

license holder;

. (9) Failure to comply with an order i»ssued by the disciplining _authofity or a
. stipulation for informal disposition entered into with the disciplining authority;

(10) Aiding or abetting an unlicensed person to practicé when a license is required; -
(11) Violations of rules established by any health agency;
(12) Practice beyond the scope of practice as'fdeﬁned,b'y lawlor rule; .

(13) Mlsrepresentanon or fraud in-any aspect of the conduct of the busmess or
professmn

(14) Failure to adequately supervise auxiiiary staff to the extent that the consuiner's :
health or safety is at risk; "

(15) Engagingina pfofession involving contact with the public while suffering from -
a contagious or infectious disease involving serious risk to public health;

(16) Promotion for personal gain of any unnecessary or lnefficacmus drug,
dev1ce, treatment, procedure, or serv1ce,

(17) Conviction of any gross misdemeanor or felony relating to the practice of the
person's profession. For the purposes of this subsection, conviction includes all -
instances in which a plea of guilty-or nolo contendere is the basis for conviction and

all proceedings in which the sentence has been deferred or suspended. Nothing in’

o this section abrogates rights guaranteed under chapter 9.96A RCW;

" (18) The procuring, or aiding or abetting’ in procuring, a criminal abortion;

(19) The offering, undertaking, or agreeing to. cure or treat disease by a secret
method, procedure, treatment, or medicine, or the treating, operating, or prescribing
for any health condition by a method, means, or procedure which the licensee refuses
to divulge upon demand of the disciplining authority;

‘_ ‘(20_) The willful betrayal of a practitioner—patien_t privilege as recognized by iaw;



21) Violatién of chapter 19.68 RCW;

(22) Interference with an mvestlgatlon or d1501phnary proceedlng by wﬂlful
rmsrepresentatmn of facts before the disciplining. authority or its, authonzed
. representative, or by the use of threats or harassment against any patient or witness
to prevent them from prov1d1ng ev1dence in a disciplinary proceeding or any other
legal action, or by the use of financial inducements tO any patient or witness to
prevent or attempt to prevent him « or her from- prov1d1ng evidence in a dlsc1p11nary

proceedlng, '

(23) Cumf,nt misuse of:

(a) Alcohpl;

(b) Controlled su'bstances;' or

(c) Legend drugs;

.. (24) Abuse of a client_‘ or patient or sexual contact with a client or patienti'

(25) Acceptancé of more than a nominal 'gratﬁit'y, hospitality, or subsidy offered by
- arepresentative or vendor of medical or health-related products or services intended
for patients, in contemplation of a sale or for use'in research publishable in
professional journals, where a conflict of interest is presented, as defined by rules of

the disciplining authority, in consultation with the department, based on recogmzed :
: professmnal ethical standards. - : . : C
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RCW 34.05.452

'."'34.05.452.VRules of evidence--Cross-examination
'( 1) Evidence, including hearsay evidence, is admissible if in the judgment of the
presiding officer it is the kind. of evidence on which reasonably prudent petsons

- are accustomed to rely in the conduct.of their affairs. The pre51d1ng officer shall

exclude evidence that is excludable on constitutional or statutory grounds or on
 the basis of ev1dent1ary pr1v1lege recognized in the courts of this state. The
presiding officer may exclude evidence that is 1rre1evant immaterial, or unduly
Arepetltlous ' ‘

(2) If not inconsistent with subsection (1) of this section, the preéiding officer
shall refer to the Washmgton Rules of Evidence as guldehnes for evidentiary

rulings.
(3) All testimony of parties and witnesses shall be made under oath or affirmation.

4 Documenta.ryﬂ eVidenc_e rhay be received in the form of copies or exce’r'pts’, o1

" by incorporation by reference.

&) Official notice may be taken of (a} any judicially cognizabie vfac'ts,' )]
téchnical or scientific facts within the agency s spec1allzed knowledge, and (©)
codes or standards that have been adopted by an agency of the United Stats,
of this state or of another state, or by a nationally recogmzed organization i '
association. Parties shall be notlfied either before or durmg hearing, or by
reference in prellmmary reports or otherwise, of the material so notlced ani
the sources thereof, mcludmg any staff memoranda and data, and they shal
be afforded an opportunity to contest the_.fac,ts and material s0 noticed. A
party proposing that official notice be taken may be required'to produce a
'copy of the material to be noticed. | '



RCW 34.05.461
=34.05.461. Entry of orders

| }d (1) Except as provid‘ed in subsection' (2) of this section:

(a) If the presiding officer is the agency head or one or more members
of the agency head, the presiding officer may enter an initial order if
further review is available within the agency, or a ﬁnal order if
further review is not available;

(b) If the pr'esiding ofﬂeer is a person designated by the agency to
make the final decision and enter the ﬁnal order, the presiding ofﬁcer .
shall enter a ﬁnal order; and :

. (c) If the presiding officer is one or more administrative law judges,
- the presiding officer shall enter an initial order.

(2) With respect to agencies exempt from chapter 34.12 RCW or an
institution of higher education, the presiding officer shall transmit a
full and complete record of the proceedlngs including such

\_ " comments upon demeanor of witnesses as the presiding officer deems
- relevant, to each agency official who is to enter a final or initial order

. after considering the record ,and evidence 50 tr.ansmitted.

| 3) Inltral and final orders shall include a statement of ﬁndmgs and
_conclusrons and the reasons and basis therefor, on all the materral
issues of fact, law, or discietion presented on the record, including the
remedy or sanction and, if applicable, the action taken on a petition
for a stay of effectiveness. Any findings based substantially on
credibility of evidence or demeanor of witnesses shall be so
identified. Findings set forth in language that is essentially a
repetition or paraphrase of the relevant provision of law shall be

- accompanied by a concise and explicit statement of the underlying
evidence of recotd to support the findings. The order shall also
include a statement of the available procedures and time limits for .
seeking reconsideration or other administrative relief. An initial order
shall include a statement of any circumstances under which the initig -
order, without further notice, may become a final order.



(4) Findings of fact shall be based exclusively on the evidence of
~ record in the adjudicative proceeding and on matters ofﬁ01a11y 5

" noticed in that proceeding. Findings shall be based on the kind of -
“evidence on which reasonably prudent persons are accustomed to rely
in the conduct of their affairs. Findings may be based on such
-evidence even if it would be.inadmissible in a civil trial. However, the -
presiding officer shall not base a finding exclusively on such
inadmissible evidence unless the presiding officer determines that
- doing so would not unduly abridge the parties' opportunities to
confront witnesses and rebut evidence. The basis for this
determmatlon shall appear in the order.

(5) Where it bears en the issues presented, the agency's experience,
“technical competency, and spemahzed knowledge may be used in the
~ evaluation of evidence.

(6) If a person serving or designated to serve as presiding officer
becomes unavailable for any reason before entry of the order, a
substitute presiding officer shall be appointed as provided in RCW
34.05.425. The substitute presiding officer shall use any existing -
record and may conduct any further proceedings appropriate in the
1nterests of j Justice , : '

, (7) The presiding officer may all'ow the parties a designated time aftei*
conclusion of the hearing for the submission of memos, briefs, or -
proposed findings. : ' :

- (8)(a) Except as otherwise provided in (b) of this subsection, initial or
final orders shall be served in writing within ninety days after
conclusion of the hearing or after submission of memos, briefs, or
proposed findings in accordance with stubsection (7) of this section -
unless this period is waived or extended for good cause shown.

“(b) This subsection does not apply to the final order of the shorelines
hearings board on ’appeal under RCW 90.58.180(3).

(9) The pre51d1ng officer shall cause copies of the order to be served
on each party and the agency.
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RCW 18.120.010

=18.120.010. Purpose--Criteria (Effective.until January 1, 2006)

(1) The purpose of this chapter is to-establish guidelines for the regulation of )
“health professions not licensed or regulated prior to July 24, 1983, and those

. licensed or regulated health professions which seek to substantlally increase
their scope of practice: PROVIDED, That the prov151ons of this chapter are not
intended and shall not be construed to: (a) Apply to any regulatory entity created
prior to July 24,-1983, except as provided in this chapter; (b) affect the powers
and responsibilities of the superintendent of public instruction or state board of
education under RCW 28A.305.130 and 28A.410.010; (c) apply to or interfere in
any way with the practice of religion or to any kind of treatment by prayer; and (d)
apply to any remedial or technical amendments to any statutes which licensed or

‘regulated aetivity before July 24, 1983. The legislature believes that all
individuals should be permitted to enter into a health profession unless there
is an overwhelming need for the state to protect the interests of the public by
restricting entry into the profession. Where such a need is identified, the
regulation adopted by the state should be set at the least restrictive level
consistent with the public interest to be protected. -

(2) It is the in’tent of this chapter that no regulation shall, after July 24, 1983, be
imposed upon any health profession except for the exclusive purpose of protecting

| the public-interest. All bills introduced in the legislature to regulate a health

profession for the first time should be reviewed according to the following
Criteria. A .healtl_l profession should be regulated by the state only when:

(a) Unregulated p}actice can clearly harm or endanger the health, safety, or
welfare of the public, and the potential for the harm is easily
recognizable and not remote or dependent upon tenuous
'argument' | ’ '

»(b) The pubhc needs and can reasonably be expected to beneﬁt from an assurance
of initial and continuing professional ability; and '

(¢) The public cannot be effectively protected by other means in a more
cost-beneficial manner. :

(3) After evaluating the criteria in subsection (2) of this section and considering
governmental and societal costs and benefits, if the legislature finds that it is
necessary to regulate a health profession not previously regulated by law, the least
restrictive alternative method of regulation should be 1mp1emented consistent

: Wlth the public interest and this section:



(a) Where ex1st1ng corhmon law and statutory civil actions-and cr1m1nal
proh1b1t10ns are not sufficient to eradicate existing harm, the regulatron should
prowde for strlcter civil actlons and crlmmal prosecutlons

. (b) Where a service is being performed for individuals involving a hazard to the
pubhc health, safety, or welfare, the regulation should i impose inspection

'~ requirements and enable an appropriate state agency to enforce violations by

injunctive relief in court, including, but not limited to, regulation of the business

- activity providing the serv1ce rather than the employees of the business;

(c) Where the threat to the pubhc health safety, or economic Well-belng is

relatively small as a. result of the operation of the health professmn the regulatlon
should 1mp1ement a system of reglstratlon

(d) Where the consumer may have a substantial basis for relymg on the services of
a practmoner the regulation should 1mplement a system of certlﬁcatlon or

(e) Where 'apparent that adequate regL_rla_tlon cannot be achieved by means other
- than licensing, the regulation should implement a system of licensing.



